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(viii)  SUllRA URSIRA 88 ol WA BRL YsadHl 818 532 3| el ayui, susllA s
sllRUsla e, Aos ¥ AR URsl WAL 518 Aot ¥ aL cly o2l

(ix)  Sue{lal cd e:(laltot YLR(els &2 eRRlell HT b ol 3R eRQU R (32 BotgRaeH
URA) el Gej 53 otell. 2 Aot gl Gedl scUML WA el GulL cif e[ 21l0t
% &l AatHl AUAA Aol HIR % scUHl 2l B.

(X) RAML A A RAsd w321 Ysdla Yool Suslloilt AUSL ua wod WA Sell
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5CAM 143(10) 3601 €2l B Ag Hiell AcHl WA B, Astl UR AB2 sl U &d. L ol WidRs
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Ass el AsS-AUHLAHL AvBll LR (A) + (B) + (C) (9,859.78) (15,922.93)
ol WRA AsS el AsS-AHLel 10,958.64 26,881.57
aria 2Ass wa Ass-AUHlel (D) + (E) 1,098.86 10,958.64
Ass el Ass-AHLetall sl Rleel «lu - 12)
Aoslul ¥l Res
-ALG WLALHL 911.37 303.08
2l eflu Ag. Sl 187.49 155.56
QL H@oll sl el AHA Wscdl qed vl ausd - 10,500.00
§CE RAsS Al Ass-AHlal 1,098.86 10,958.64

(@)
(b)

(d)

AsS Yalle uase{l ol

Gscl ASS YUclle UAS 805 AAMU-7o{l vy cuel Uald Horol daulr srellHl A B.

RAR Actscoll WILELSL At 4t wst (st ds0e(l Metsdlott 32510(l WAR WA galacdl HWACA B.

Al Y5l @R AdsA AR RAR Actscoll WAL 3. 113654.39 cllw B (PY 3. 72036.73 cliw) FHill [Qot-Ass 3. 1777.99 Al (PY 3.
1297.58 L) st AsS 3.100955.87 GlLul (PY 3.37637.01 GLv) Al ALY HSloll ¥R51R6{l MUR 3.10920.53 LW & (PY (33102.14 culw)) (Il

¥ ol)
(@Qotct
Al Hglstal Ac@ct U HIHL FRsRel ARAR
Aol auate{l 2LatsAHL (culA)/uetS
cAlURs Ysarllxlui (auRl)/uetsl
251 oUoUe{l Sl 8L (AuUl)/eeLst
o2l ALG FAUGERIRAHL (LuA)/e2lS)
-cloll Alet Al AsalRUHL (cLat)/aLsl
251 alole{l Aot WA A ScllERAAHL (cLLR)/uaLsl
o UG FAles AL (AA)/uetsl

Al ax
(10,920.53)
7.97
139.69

(26.62)

14,564.20

(35,530.60)

8,756.65
1,168.18

weg ax

33102.14

67.82

(143.39)

29.76

12709.24

(9,169.01)

27579.44

2,028.28

3131 12, 201861 Aor oSl YgRRAHL Ass yctieMl [@QEll ARl glodflatet L 3. 2877.33 Gllutoll 1281 el 3.213.68 GlLutoll

clegotl 5121 Glodl dUuleatl EallHl aul

UHlol ARIHotl (613 Gl MBUEHA ;LR
Uojelld Aos 2le AARAAUL adl

ALES AsLGo2oz U

ICAI Ul ol sHis 106041W/W100136

uél

. BIR. URHIR
UOILELR
UeA sUis 121462
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31| Wi, 201861 A% Yol Ul ay W2 BEALHL F514] UAS

A 86381 A2 Y3l (3. ctHl)
Al RS
ot 9
1 AN, 201601l A 1,32,521.00
ek A 8adl AR 22,600.00
3141 W, 201741 A% 1,55,121.00
Welk Udd 88l AR 30,000.00
3141 |, 201861 A 1,85,121.00
B. Yyl 86AColl UMl Botg o2 (3. AU
ARt /U
ot 11
1 AN, 201601l A% -
oy gaulet 3R (deal oAl 11.3) 31,200.00
314 13, 20174l A% 31,200.00
oy gulel 3SR 15,500.00
3141 |, 201861 A% 46,700.00
C. uo 863 (3. ctwHl)
. UolHll Ao oSl Rets
J . ¢
(el AR Yol ollRll] R28es ollol e
el 11 el 11
1AM, 20160l A% AR 31,200.00 1,635.67 32,835.67
AHAUOL HRell olfl b (ofsilol) - 2,168.95 2,168.95
o £0aetoll wet YHIAAS WIS - -
o HRell st wudas qds - 2,168.95 2,168.95
oy €aulelotl (82 (el Al 11.3) (31,200.00) - (31,200.00)
31 "I, 20170l A% Al - 3,804.62 3,804.62
1 AN, 20174l A% AR 3,804.62 3,804.62
HHAUOL Hieoll o8l ¥ (ofslol) (10,448.02) (10,448.02)
o gR2Alotoll oA HHIAAS icls - -
o HRell st wudas qds (10,448.02) (10,448.02)
o g0Uetoll 3R - -
31 13, 20180l A% ACU (6,643.40) (6,643.40)

aeuslal Ul Aol AUl deotl W@ {0l UMl B

UHLol dlRluloll AMR Wdalled H¥A

Uojell Aos e ARl acdl
URS AslBo2oz U

ICAI U&loll ollug(l sHis 106041W/W 100136

uél
). VUR. URHIR
el(leR
UeA sHis 121462

W : ol Resl

Adlw: 23.07.2018
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313l 3, 201801t A% YU Ucll crlotl sltgUslA UASL A{Ao{l olltd

1. $uo{lell A

A2-(Aos AsAUYU 12 AU L[AdR Aos WHELAE (AU $U{l QMBS (CIN: UB0200GI2010SGC059407)
AR AAA 29182 Suoll B ual Aoll Ul SUsl R, 19560(l BOLUBU Yol UL .
$Uo(loll ABes AZU oclls ol.1, yaur Ho, 532000 elaet, A522-10 A, aliladR - 382010 wid
AUAA 8. SuUoll R UBER Al Y%At URBRaA 50:50 (3R YRl UYscl AU V. SUa{loll vy
G2l JULlotdR ol WHEIAE cARA dl ul A ABAo{l 82 wotcllal »sUl, [Quslla, ua, stia,
Ualcot Aol WEAs Ad uRad Acl @2 URdgst Acl Y3l wsal HER W AUURA 9d 35Ul
URaset Actloll eUUtL UAAA W Aoll ncll s2clall B.

$Uo{l slot-A(EBsylet ANt wal Yol AMAtl AaAlBol (33522 Ucld dA oS URAA B, BUL AYsct
AlsUoll AIERL glrl ARl (A Mell ([AMaHl el 8. il uHaRUL g0, $Us{l AUt
BUBA/ A USIHAL ACLSS B.

UL atgusla uAsl 2341 e, 201801l A% (3252A0ll 62 Yol A3 scl U2 A@sR HRldd
&ell.

2. ollQUSlA uatsl dalr sRellotll ALURL

Rl (Baell ARel R stivusla uasl susly (sldaust AsIBRI0L w5 $R), 3, 2015 3601
U SUl (BRUt WASIGROL @Le5§N) WNoSNo2 3G, 2016 6121 YuURA elRcla Bl trel
YHI duR sclHl el B,

o{lAe{l sttt olle sl attalslal ussl AAstRs USARA R d=llR seHl el B:
o 3ecls alausla Masdl ua walHeFlAA aroll Yeudll YataauHl il 8 (atausla Ausll
Adell Fauoll A o2
o WHlgcl clletoll et - AR Actsdls] Yeaiset alsoll BHa scuul Wad B

slausla uAsHl Hell el 3RauHl ealaaiil wWAA B el 518 ARl s o sl Ul Yl
A% sail Alo(l AvltHl 3WdRd scuHl A B.

3. elluuat Gaell o(lQals(l @otd
SUcllal ollguslal uasl dalr scl AMA wHAHl Y3cll iyt Bael (@0 «1A yru B, sudda

Aol Ay e0utet wl o{l[QAA AHAML Y3 B:
3.1 UG @3¢ el ao(lswal

suc{lal algraRll collsuel 2R uist dRd2uMi sl wa sclolelF2 gallcl &
Masd A A AR:

o GUXotofl el sl Al AHA s3] AsHl Aol AU & SlL;

o UlaMs 3d g5t AuRell 3qell vl 8lay;
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o [RWEMDtett uHadUOl KR H@olloll vieR GUsatoll el Slat; el
o RWEDL U0 Uloll BWNHT 209 12 HEoll HIZ (e AMe SUHER] Y3 scunl Ass
5 Ass AMlatell Ysarll uldoi@d sl

o tll o Aetsdl @Rl d¥ collsd sRauml wad 8.
AUAELI UG Bl RUR:
o AUMHLA SISl AsH waeelR] yal uy s,
o UlEaMs 3d g5t AuRell dqell wull 8lay;
o RWEDLLeU AxUoUl 12 HEatioll 2ER scllatelRl Yal seltsll 8lat; waal
o R0l uHadUOL cllgal WMl AL 12 Ul R wclreldl Yol sclell sielal Qe
sclloll [Aat2Rcl &5 ot 8L

SUAIR Bo Gltl % W AUHERRAA olot-502 dE Ol 53c B.

Ol 52 PcAsAl U FAUHEINAR ollot-502 AASA A SAUHERS AU co(lyd sl wicl .
stlstdl us

$Uo{lo] stsi3l usall uHaA Aetsdell WIlEledl a3 531 Aot Auell Ass ¥ Ass Ut Hoaal Yol
ala B, susllA 818 AssU stAs3 us €2(cdf ot 88 A 12 HU(Eatlo] oWlcUnl WA B,

3.2 [@zall uasl

siistdl el

alusla waslHl ealaaHi Al otddl suell % ool U stHolldl 52 B uell yaMs weds
R 2uR yaaami well B, suslletl stgusla uasl etrcdla 320l % scuHl wUAd B, %
$Uo{lo] stalsi3l Al B.

U8R A Yidl

@zl UARNHL sRcUHl AUAAL USSR AMIAHL AR A @R scllad clias Ul A AT sus{lsil
s121s13] AARML €lacHl wWAd B.

@zl vl ealaaHi Al oteusla Aasdl wal walHeFRAA BWEDLL(l ARl [@efliatstl
51205131 UAQell U2 22U UR ULARd salMi el 8§, Al YslRell AdslRAal A2cNee AHA dal
anfd A ateusla Resdl wal galoleldlletl Qo 29l scUHl WA 3UidRa 51280 Gedl UACL
@Qo{lHal dstada % A AHA vlas AUl WA d3ly elacuHi AUAA 8. %l A s AsS Yols 28Rl
U ol ala A Al SEASHL &P\ sRcUHl vl B.

@l uctgl AsIRs UscRoll a®A yetdai wadl dla dal (@et-atigusla AU yRes

Aol dAlRlllotl @oflam €2 3UWdRA saudl el B, clwoll YA ([Qzall ucgmi yadauHl
UAAL (Aot-ollRusla AUAR AR Ao ol Head oissl & sl A vl @Qollna g8l 3uUidRd
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3.3

sallMl weadl 8. ol yeauedl Yadai WA (Qat-oiguslal Aldsllatl 3uidRel UAcl «§l ¥ vilea
Attt cllegoll el YAl 3812 UR otsl ¥ wWleell wowal AMlet dQlelHl wad & (Gel. 3%
{lueml aesoll el gl otgl ¥ wleoll AW URell U6l dstald wecl W{lueul o8l
Ul Wle Adl siaal eallaaiHi ud).

arrell Y yaagl

$Uoll 3RAS S wA A1 Fell sttQuslal Atolloll YAl e3s sl AUl AR csoll Yeaell 52
®.

alsoll Yt A A EUd B 3 B YAARloll AR olntRetl Asea(RA a2 MAesdatl duglell Hads(l
¥ wclleelRloll duelcdl a1 Ysaatoll slat ol yeasll Yetapll Al Micddl UR 23cll B ¥
Adsdott AL AR SAUHERAl datelellotl calatsl ol Aol RALH udl:

o RAsd ¥ wclrel3l Mol Yud olostRMl
JUT
o YUl wRe{l ARel Ml MAsc wacl SalelelRlatl Wl AlaLsRs GlostRUL

yual ua Al cAletsiRs oML SUsll HIZ YAl U0 Sl A8,

Masd ¥ saloleRle csoll yeausll Yaarll Al HicUdlal UR sl WA B F wolRall Aseo(lAl
Aoll Actsc ¥ sclnelle] yeal dotl 2Els (Baui sl

(@ot-stigusla Mescotl csell yYeaoll YAl doit Al wa AL Guallal s3lal aadl sle Al
Ul AU A dell GUAL 52 Adl ool Ue(AA Al wEds clellett Guetoll aidlal
RUAHL A 8.

$Uol Al yeuisotoll IAdlell GUAL 52 & B RAA Yol AU dlal ol Boll MR cllwoll yeaoll
HataQll 1 YRl Wl yta g ¥ el ioifd dlluuwat WEdlell Heri A ([@Qataliuuat 1R
Ayt GUAL sclHl LA,

allaUsla UASHL clsoll Yearoll AU aollgd Sl A @R salil A Aasdl ual alalelZA
Axetl Wl Ay Botyeal UR o{lA Yoot galcadi Aet B ¥ awoll yeauoll yaasl HR wu
olu ues o
o 581 — UHlot YsiRoll Mescll Aucl WlaelZRA 1R UEA sAM AUAA (BHA
o sall2 —yAdRloll AA ¥ Boll R Ay Botye ¥ B cloll yeaoll Yetagl 1R wolisll & A
yetal 3 uRlet A olluuwst B,
o sall3— clwoll yeauoll Yl HR %331 B Adal dyri Belye HIR Yeaisatoll Id Aluut otel.

alRusla ussiHi Rsdlot R ealctatHl Al & Adl AAsA A saUHelR]l 1R, $Usl vl
AU B ¥ 3UAR YsiRell §31 Yeaisel olle Aol QAU  seull (llucll saiell Sotyea AUUR 3 %
ol Yol Yoagll 12 ASER U] B) cRA Yds RUWEDL uMell Bid Uy & 3 ¥,
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3.4

$Uo{lo] AucsHsn RsoL 3R Ay N3N ee Ul ollot-RsIoL 32 Ay NBRAee olal HIR o{l[A ual
YEARD AulRd 53 8. oluunt Basdl die oia Acua stolldl Auart wd 8. A sta(l3l
AUl w3l (el 232 AR w2l sl slte wal Aoll 1oyl olle AAASHSO glRL AUl WA B,
URLE( Mol MIUESIHL welRe] sllol, WAL, Al wal cAldBls DRElsl UWetetoll AMLAL Al
8. Acyu €2 2AQ a¥ cedal AUA B, Yeaisat MR €35 AHA 58 Ugldoll Gualal sl A 3{dlell
(el uesHs sucllotl sllal deyur A AUl s3la otssl 52 8.

yls RUEbL A, AAcAsHsO Aesdl ol alrelZlxAloll YERIHT Udl 391 [AAMRL 52 & Bo]
SUolofl (Batoll ol Yool 3-yAaRl wA ¥R-yeauisat $q %331 sl B, ul (Q:AQ HER,
AALASHSN $AR el o Aol|ct EAUABML UM WA HeauisotHl ¥ HIRA A AHA U8
Uelclot Yeaisatl @l Yy ueslell AsRQ 52 B.

AAlesHsn susllotl ollal deyuA WA Hollal callls NQ as B’ell 3912 Aol & ¥ otel d oissl
sl HIZ YAs Masd wal salolellotl aoll Yl add $5120(l Aild ollal Mt WA el 53
8.

alsoll yeauo] [ealot atal A 3dell, sucllal Mesd wal saleERloll UsR, Alei@sdizl U Resd
Al AUHAER Al Bl AUUR AAsA wal Al QM Axes GUR Rl Yoot cllesoll
Heaoll sell otssl sct .

UL ol ol et 2idlell (Bauoll A @AW xaud 8. aesell yeaua ddldl ot (Aol AoiRld AlHi
AUUCAHL A B.

o Heisal Uug(Aulle] [Aeelat, dlluuiat Bauoll Yslell, AEL] U HicA AR

o ol Yeuoll YAARloll o] el AUULRA @A

o allRusla AL (BRYGEA Buad clldct Aldd)

RULAR RAs, Wlloe 3ol Ul HIAL

BsAHA, Wellod A Wtolladl s3cdict0lell BHAV/oiuUsH, YUR olle 53lal Wal 810N AL A 8L
Al Aal slte s3lal el vl B, $et USARHL WILEL (BMc dal Aol Al sleddHl 3UidRd sal
HIR Ul WL Balld allg, SY2L, 53RN, wod AIsRAS WAL U Actde RscRoled cddRell uHA Ul B.
SUo(lA UlBse Yal srall HI2 Yl I sclloll Al ol o WAal UlBse vRsAUMAML HSlgct seuul
Al B, vl WAL wlloz Ul HAlATlol W, wrsUUA ANA W, ARAN W, sMalelol ual
220l W, (Qotdalr ABRUIDL U L WsAUHAA $3c0LA sl M A At URell caulall
UL w B.

BREAM Aol BOUG otssl scUHl AUAA Hed $cll sletoll BRgAUM Aol AQARAHT UstlR el %l AU
. dl R AN ske Aldcloll Wllod Aol Al HER Wenell gsik Walal Buell yeuui GARaM
Ulcdl B, WA vsAMA d3 ealaaudi il g dal €35 AUAIN sillaoee(l BHA RLAUN2
AHA (33501182 sclMl el B. oltsl ol HAHA Wal HnaRl WAl BUWEDL UuHAHL o5l ¥ WleHl
AR UM UAA O,

66



alls wdcucd
AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS 2017-18

AU A S0 AsIGBot VU, Welloz U Atallol 818 olluust (@l @Ay Gualolldl
wRLedl Sl Al dal WUl wellod ol Altdollotl AN (@A d313 ealcteaui wA 8. sUs{lA ol
BREAUM A tsls0U{l 2o, wllean, uRew Yol s2a 8.

Al YSlsil stolRl a3 actell wtgl 8 Acl Masdl UR el wWlell qxdl i 8, Bul 3ect
Bodoedl UQ AH(AR B, WA Wsst UBse dotssl otssl ot ad @l Yol wg yslstd 33 o
AuAUHL A U RURAUE Aol RAR RAsdAMl dueld ¥ stacl Eeunl wadl,

aul o ol sl ddl yiet WA, wUsRAs wal UBseoll wiusid e@ast eMalel 4dd e
Rl sMaellol ot sl @l Yell g Ydlstad dd ealaami waAd & ua sats{lor g e URulE
Aal ® A YUl welled ¥ Aot dotelet ¥ stocll eunl 2uadl,

st ARdlell AR WMUEl, elloz ol Altslloll WAEL 1z sl Al 2003l YsagllAlal wel
allot-5202 AA2Y 360 32 AU d3¥ cdlgct sraunl 2wl 8.

MAasdott QUL ¥ Aol A9 olle AsBct v Aol@cd WA stlgusla ussiuiell g scuul wad
8.

2052 ExcllARloll ARl €A vlasal clitsiH UuHA £t UAAL WRI(l U AHERAR A 5cUH
AUAA B, oliusiH UHAHT AAAl Wel WA RscR Ul (ABAS AU UHRNBA UM ALl
®. [QAGA3es 3INRBUA 3Nect Rlle Ay owlctHl A 88 A HIZ 518 was5ARAl Bl sCUHI
wAd ol

3255130t

518 WUICAR MAdsd, Wlloe ol AUAMH ol [Asie uHA waal dHiel elQwmi 518 uEds cietsll
wUall of sl dal (335%Ueys (uelHiell sHl) s3 Badi 2d ®. @cR MAasdet (255{losetell adl
Alel 3 ofslol (AAWRL Al A CUIRl Al RAscoll dsotoll 251 AAell dslelcoll AQLAl)oll 81
222 A5t (3591823 AL RUR o1sl A ofslotoll UAsHL elccini 21 B.

YURL

$Uo{l UR 20130t URERR 11 ol ewol Al g601 gallcal Yo, R RASH, Welloz uA AltatAHAl

URell YU Mcdsdell Gualollcttott crllal 2 el Aldledl ugldR swetaHl A &, Aesdell Ay

U 9ol 313 aQlemi AUAA 8.

i) U welloz Aol Ut olA e2laAcll AAscloil B, dsellsl vierelal R Gulolldtstl
el adll Yool duRAe{l QAR scUml A B:

Acdsell usR GuA(lctiott el
U Welloz Aol Hlet3] — ARYSIaL 5 ayl

U Wl U HAAIl - s8Rl o

RsARA 3l 5 oy

U Welloz Aol HAlot3] - ABAY 3 o
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3.5

WA o2 Aol HAA - AAR Rzreir, Wer
woi2eR Ae s YUY BRgHoe 5 ot

if) elstug Aasdl:
1A eldcll AasAle(l auglott Brauni, daRlell il spAwU UHUOUL ¥ 5 ay auidl @
WOl Slal A2l AHAMOUA LAloAHl A sRAUHL HMAA D:

RAesdel ustR Guo(lclett anl

dlxdles sryaioe 5 o

alstugloll Masda Wi ay sl el Al Wl saml WA dl o8l ysacdl s 2
Al Aasd wicdl 531 8l A %l otgl Al ofslet Wil Hisl clnami quadl.

i) ay eRalet AUWRVAAA AcsAl URell daA WILEL & Aol dlflw Yool YRl AR
ol wAd 8. 3.500001 Hed Yloll Adsdlal wilEltl ay eaet » Ayl dla
WA 53| Tl wUaAd B,

iv) HAUBA Botghoztadl A ool AHANOUME HISl claatHl HAA B ul d ol udRlell
oLl sauHl il B,

V) ABAIo{l USIRA U ALl WIlElotl i o Yol A 1isl clnai wuad .

WUAR Mesd, wlloe Aol AlatUHIltl (Bullell GUI(clloll JUON HAIN-UAIL Sl AR AMA As
WAL e (g Aot dla A 3y ealaami wWaAd B Al doll Wellell GUA0[cltell U weuell
Asll Yua Aetsdell Gualolldlell ool Axiell B W slat Acl AHAML U s3] Tl wa B.

AAlesHsn A Hal B ¥ GUR AUl A Ul - Aal yHaUNe] YARuc 52 & %
gt AUesHsn A Mesdott Gualdlell ube AN 8. wdl w MAasdlel Gua(ldtel
AHAUA Asollsl deEA UR SUoll U 201301 URA 11 ot etdl fl dsn [(Aellcd unaou0L
$cll AUAIL B,

wileal 3 Auami Al Adsdl URell YRl Aol UL AHAdOL Yol GRA ¥ Baulncts(l
ARl Yorol YHIgRIR A owgleudl 2 .

WUAR Masd, e wal Aaqoflotlt AN yell, GUaA(dott  anll Al «RA awteell uglsll
et yds otuslal ad sratHi AA & ol AMi %331 ¥§1R Ul scHl 2d B.

o

Ul Al B 3 o8l Aol AR Alosell AU UAA calcRaUl UR AWURd 8. ul cacaue(l Astuell 53
QLM A B ¥ ollscglell Yolatoll ylBal S8 Assy Masd vl Aasdl U2 WullRd 8 ¥ 3. Al

UlRUHL (A5 I AWssU GeAW ot Alall 9l A s WUl RAsAell auel w@sR galad
.

S$Uo(l alld RAuellr 33

Al wRet ARl o steusla dlo waal siisil dlosul aollsd sraudl wad 8. swgusla dlos ¥
Roll Al A clelladl Aloell clreoll MUASIUGL Yool SUsll duelad s dlat Aol dlosetl YR
Al uR dlAcll ek Rasdatt arsell YA yslsd sradl wdl & wadl aygad dly Ysagllsi
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3.6

acdHiot Yot uR eallactil wcll B. allalelRloll sitsloll YRid UR calloll Actdd €2 Ancl asta A 1R
Aol ysaglal stgusla W ua dlosell wauseldul datst aR agdAuaii vl 8. seusla wia
olgl ol ofsAlol WlcHl allRusla WL d313 ealaal WAd & Ud ¥ w WA cdlas Rasd uR
URRA S Al dal sUslloll QL Wlell A oA Yorot YSlsc sauml A 8. Aelldd eusillal
Vol AHUOUHL % WA dR1E ealeieuni wucl B,

elstugtell Masdal Mesdatl GUAR[dlotl AHA Yol UAHEAA sl wcll B, wH i, dlaell
Al Yol = suoll Masdoll W@l Anad Acl alsell widil o sl A Rdsdoll welBd
GUA(ctl UM AR Aol wal@l- Axil B WS dlal A UHAUOU Yool AUAH (@t s 2wl 8.

slausla Rataell dlos sadsil dlos 8. stdsil dloell ysaglzllal dlosell wcl@ yorol otst Al ofsilet
wlcttHl flell llEloll ugldnd eedaai sucu 8 Rat 3 Aal B BHl audl wdl clos gouauedl
UAR ealacdl Sl ual losell WA QA AHUOL HIZ WRWR eltst 313 [EruoHl Aeunl el slaL.

S$Uo(l Al JUUR 33

altstugt () ¥ Bl suell AAsdotl Aol Al HIASHL el At A ddeld sl «f ala
Aal stedstA o 3 adllycd sauml 2l 8. stelstl dlosui adl eustell 2uasa ol@d dloell
wdlal R Al Aol ugldn eafacuni 2l 8, Raa 3 Act Bru Bl audl xdl
gl R ealadl slat ual cflosotl wel A AHUOUL HIZ WRWR alst ddld ealcl dat. stlsidl
Alosell cutetentl ua NscRHl UAA UR@s ytet wla etd dlild Madsdetl WRIHL GRReHL A
8 sl eustoll uas Bal AMlet WUR Aottt wH2UNL HE2 elcaHi WA B. Aaldd eusilla
GUeSololl AHAUNOUML ol§l U ofslel WML HEYA 31} ealad B.

MAsdal ddtdl A Al HIASlesetl clellell alluuat Bl »2? $uell skl Al Aotk dulélad
saHl A AR Adl dlosal stusla oy dly collsd sreundl 1A 8. ed Atk WYl «ususla
Al 360 oltsl sUA Alfluul Suollotl g ASQHT HOwElR WU 313 eallcail wWaAd 8. swrusla
Alosell vutasal Baoll wmououHl adqucHi vl ® ¥ Rl dlo doildd vl A UR AHAUR
HAAL Ucdd dodRel €2 Aadl astaL,

HRL 2UsRLell Wl

BRL JYsRlell WA ytel Ad Mesdell AUWEst, diusiH ¥ Gaulest UR AUURA B ¥ % Aol YR
Guallol ¥ AU M dAuR UciHl dluut ¥4 A & Al B A Adsdell usdR d3y yslsd sa
WAA B. e HRL YRl WAUL B AHANGUHT L2l Sl AHL & ealaaudl WA B. Rl sl WMl
ey dal elsl Aal HIZ $Uoll glal scllHl vlaldl ol WRIell AHIAA Ul . R sl WML
@QoflaHHi 2512 S12QL Ul WRlell URL AHLALL AURL B.

AlssU BRletl SIHAUAG AsRL URe(l Asalell uas ¥ Boll Alls MsAHA URell WAL oltsl sla dal
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3.7 Adidlds Resdl

wAtll Al d sauHl waAdl uUdiRds Adsda usdAEHA ealaai wucll 8. yik(ds et
wle, AdRA@Ss MAesdloll Buduiell AsBd BRYGEA ua AsAd daistell w2 ol sl Al Auiel e
s ealctcudl wcl B, el s el UABd B Adl As2ARA Ul uUcldlds Mesd
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wclrdls Aadsdlett Guo(ldiott el H2AUR A Al wHAR A NRAL 2UsRR sRelHl ALl B.

HAlRt G0l Ul wetrelds Metsdletl Yeami detsl U dal A3l sl AR Aasdlal Axoetl
GUAL( 2wl Walotal WUR BRYs sraAMl WA 8. HaAlRd GuAdl uHA YAl HardAs
Betscd HRoll BRHEAll AHAN ual BRG]l Usldoll uds RUEDL UHAMOUAL A N9
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Uclctlds Mesdell (335%(losetoll 51200 Gealaldl oisl ¥ wleal MAdsdotl (25%{loset AHA otsl el
ajsllel WlcHl Bletscotll Yot Aol AU UHA UAAL GULNst Al dslad d3l3 Yaaaul wa 8.

HRYEL

WA esollcllHl 3% A elldwiotl (s clellal U ee wiA avell Guolldl sl
AUEASHSOLoll AELNL UR RIS ScUHL WAA B.
GUAIell AU SIRA AU S1e1l UHAUAL HIZ UMW (BRA RS s el B.
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AsH (AlY)oll clwoll (Buct w0eot AL (Euct wal GUA[ ol HEU 5cll AR dla B. d Aol
Masd R otssl sA2A B, Rauad ¥ Blesd Ass Yclss] GUat ot sl 8l B Suolloll wod Metsdl
sl {2 eldl el dlA 8. Mcsdoll aget sU AUl WYs] GULNel Aol URd HAGtZ] 8H SRl
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3.9

AuR sl dl A Aasdul gelsl gl slalls] Mot 8 U dal URd Huell3] suell AR 1Sl alnal
A B,

GUAHL ¥ 5101l HeuM], elAdrUuatl AMEUBA A8S Yellea allllotl MU Hetoll Yoot wenR
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AUWA B, wl WARRAR wglAu yeauiset, wdUlL 235 VatsUo{lRAlell A6l BHd wa alwoll yeu
gallatcl Ao Yl @EN YR 2w 8.

$Uc{lA Aol 810N e2ell RISl HIZ ([Aotdallr Ve UA B WPUSRAA R Al B % suUdllell
yds Ay we ucoEell dar saml wWell B, B lbdold MAdsd sodani sl 8. w
VU Wl WOUSRA oLl 12 AlHle A Ui ciiell AHAOUAW ActHl el Sl 8. dicll
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gallctail vl 8§, Rata 3 @ucR Adsd ¥ Bof g3lell sl A Yeauisot ol UHIAAS WLASHL
A8 il wled Slat ull B, 81RNcea oGl Heauisotoll BHd Yol o UHAAS wAsHL
gl wad .

wusl Radell Adasdl 1, yds BUEblell dAdl asell sl wud & ¥ Bl el s ¥
UG glccuml wAA YeU Yalsloll Wlee] 6Q URAC B ¥ o8l ual dMl delsl Ul B ¥ o8l ol Al
YsRall A3 8l dl, Ul Actsdoll uaal Yl ud Aol asa Acl 8uall ey s18 B. wUoUG
glaail wWdd 81N Wzl dl % GaelaalHl A & AR decll 810N vleo(l aw uy
URYl Adsdsll urd Andl asta Adl sH otssl sall W2 GUAHE ActHl Al URRUAML S\8
38R Ul sl Getetatallell ybal Halled B ¥ Bl MAsds] dsst Yt Aol uRd Ancl asta Acl
(B 5cll ARl o8l ¥ UURA ULE otssl saUMl Blclollk cAdetl (SHA 5l Ul dBl oAgl. Ul MAsd MR
BOUGall aHl 518 1002 Wiz e2laatii A ol wL UslRoll Gee¥R olsl wA gfslel UASH
galctaHi wad B, Raa 3 Masda ¥uusQllell 250 ealata Bl Gaelactsll (Baua ¥uustelladl
AAA At A3¥ owetatHi el dlau.

AR A GuAdl ca uRladl AaAAs Mdsda calsaold Ila radl Ay seud 81riNee HIR
URaQL scUHl A 8.l Ylsal dset Heauul dalsl U dal [E MO @UR saMl wUa B.

Ulas AULEaL

c%o{l wlcls

Wl % ollUSlA Aol ¥ BHA BRYSA USAR gt el sl ol cauesellofl stausla Masdlal
ol AMAAS WA sRL Aol Yt dF WS sraul Al fla AR ol w5l UUBSIRS
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Al cget 5ol WA ollgUslA Attotoll HABRA dal Ml g5l AHAUNA URell BEIRA eldraiui
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Wl Bl
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(i) cwudla Mesdsll wRlels saw . yaael
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dueatdl GRI asta Acl cucsRell (3L, ValsUs{lRA Al AYsd AsAHL s A5
Ranael wtll o stlausla sl yRel alesoll 4e ealacuni udl 8,

dAlusla Aasdl 3 B ool URRAA waucl @RoRL glRl AlECHL AHAA AHAUNLHL
Adsdell BAal %33 Sl Aotl Wile ¥ AU AUReAL Rad o allccmi 2ud B, Gel. 33
Actsdott QUL 3 WIEL 12 B ARlw sUs{lR cust w1 L.

(i) stgusla Metsdle{l sl yeanl
Ul Yool R atrusla Aasdlal R aolul collsd sauml vl :

o RS BUA dusla Blesd
o VoA AMAAS s IRl Aol YA sgusla Rasdl (Ag(E01)
o o8l ¥ ajslet sl ol YA ausla Rasdl (A slEAd)

$UolR Aoll stlgusla sl 1A guacll seulml collsd s3Il o:
o ollausla PAesdlell AAdet W2 sUsllo] [ARaAU 3, U
o ollRusla MAcsde] sAN Ass Yalsoll clal@sdiz

o BRUYsA Bua suusla Aasd:
slausla MAsd BRYsd Bud ealaa & =

dlguslal Mlasd [[osad W3 WA o 8l Boll 3 SA Yol AsS Yclle A58l
scll HI2 ollauslal Aasd astacll gAvclell 82, ua
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AlQUSlA MAAsdotl 5AR0(l ARA S8 s AssU ARSI AsS YallsHl AUl 52 B
GlLSl Hut REH UR Yyl Aol calloll Ayel ysarll (SPPI) &lal.

UL sell sUoll w2 Well Yriold B. yRkl@s yetarll aie, . ysRell stgusla Aeasdl
VRABIRS UX € (SUBUR)oll GUAl BRIYSA USAR HAdAMl WA B, BRYSH
USctRofl alalcdd]l Autest URell 818 (3251Go2 3 [Qa{lad AR gusuRAL w(@r vioL A §l
5 ual et Al saAHL WA B, BRHSA SUBUIRA AHAL ogl WA ofsUlotil
slausla wds 3y e B, el detslal sRA adl Wee [edst ogl ¥ vileul
SOUHL WA B, AL 58l AUHLA I AWR ¥ el HOCUULA UR &) Ud B,

oA AHLAAS Alas Rl el YA sirusla Aasd
slausla Aascoll Yetagll uet AHLAAS wAs glRL Aol YA seuHl A B, \:

dlgusla Masd @rad HBA % Udd 8l Boll Yual dd SAR Yol AsS Yclle
Al ua atRusla Bletsdletl duR AX oiad s Yal adl 82, sl

AlQUSlA MAAsdotl 5AR0(l ARA S8 As AssU AR AsS YallsHl AUl 52 B
GlSl Yut M UR Yol Aal calloll Ayl Ysarll Rladl Ay w0y Mo{luct
oS Bo22) Gl

FVTOCI sl dHU@Ae oteusla Madasda yrRetHl axes ydd RUéblell adi atesoll
4 YAl el B, clsoll yeauoll ¥R812a ol AHIAAS wasHl ealaai wudl .
UM O], SUllA caulrell las, YeAH dalslal 58 YA W2 Al Gee¥R dal [@Agell
@QollHaa 5120 UAA o15l ¥ osAlotal olgl WA ofslel WicHl £20Act 8. Rcsd ual AUE
U{lusul g0t AYst el 3 Weal olgl A ajslot Wil 8EAZ Ml seunl
ulAd B. FVTOCI allaslal Mesd lat Q AHAHL sHIAA clesal sk ugldett Gulol
GlRL AUSIHL ollticltHl WAA 8.

sl ¥ ofslot gl clwell YA sgusla

FVTPL A sllusla Aesdloll ousl 23l setl 8. 518 o algusla MAsd 3 B BRIYs
Bua waal FvTocl dily collsett WS Yal ot 52 dal FVTPL d313 cdllsct sauml
uldd B.

UL GURd, SUsll algusla Mesdal Ude s2cle] otssl 52 5 @ waA 88 A wHAAs
Blcsoll HIUES gl BRYsH WA ¥ clxoll Yeu AN B B otsl ¥ ofsllet gl el Y
Al B, AU O, Al Ustell udeolloll Hy3l @R o UMl WA § AR aAx sl
el ngal o{losatl [Qridlddil dalsl 52wl Al g2 5 (Bauoll ol
Yud). Ul FVTPL 313 Bello] 518 Alusl URiE 5 atell.

YREs yetarll ole, w UsiRell stgusla Blesdlal otsl U ofslol UasHL €2lcall Yosolsil

35 A clwoll YA YAl ua B.
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(iii) eteLsla Metsdle] S1R5{l03et

aAlQuSlaA Mesdal S1Rsoetesns scUHl AUA B AR
slgusla Masd Wl Ass yats Uell 5AR AR &5 Yol al,
ual

$Uo(lA Matsct WAl Ass ydle Al HEZ dell $AR AR U@SRAA dndled
53 B wacl Al wUHERSRS URQUL B ¥ W-g cucRkal 60 Al uatsiRa 518
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$U(lA MeAsdoll ctll % Sl Wal A aldulat d dotéld s 8, wadl (o)
$Uc{lA Resclotl oLl % Bl AR dndAa dotelad Ul ool sal ¥ Weltell WA ueL
ol vl URq MAsce] (AR doeld sA .

SUolR R Aascridll Ass yale Ancal HER doll ARSI dueld sal & wgadl wWu-¢
clcleUl JNsAA B R A Al ustaell 52 B ¥ AQ Jectl 2 HUASe50tl Al A AR
Wetloll WRA vl 8. 2AR $Us{lA Mesdoll ottt o Rl Aol dndR dluust Id dodla
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Actsd wa Aol wUHERA Al AUR HAdadHl A B ¥ d SUsllA AN 851 Aal
AU AU Rl [Reelat 5.

Acdd UHAA 3 B dol€ledl AAsd UR dReBloll eBUHL AcMl AUA B dal $Uelloll MU dset
etictloll oflucll sHAR Axy SUllA URd Ysaalloll %32 dlal Acll HedH 8N YAdami uUd
8.

IS SRt 56l SRAL

WS Sldet 50l 3RAN D %l A ol dlat Al A dlke Sleglsedl UAI SAHL LUl
adll. ul ysRall sa{l 3RAL Dy dle sloglse AN Yo otsdl AR 8. A slke Sloglse
QRS o 82t Al A 518 walet (R Uil otell wal o{lAoil UMl Ysarl scloll aa &:
o B d sRARell S8 UQL AllUWA USR] sl U,
o U UARL ¥ Boll Aoi[Ad WA ¥ Acltoll BHct Slat vl A UL [AaHl c_awdl cacslRHL
AHA A Ball GuAL AAl 8\,
o ABAR wlEls RANMUL @Qot-otigusla cdqllell WALl ¥ Auml WA Ild
GUAHL AcltHl a8l Ag UARL BHL cAdslR UY b,

Gscl UWRMIEL Y&l sRcll ot Sl Al JRet sl BaAds 3(RAS ol Aol gl vl B
U olgl-ofsllol W3U 3RASa 0o (B el el B. susll sldml ul YsRell 818
3(RAZcs urladl otell % oildd ot sl

(iv) slgusla Metsdleil Yeauul ualsl (810N e2)
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dAlUsla MAsdl URell 81000 Al el BuHo(l AsUloll REdat 12, SuUs{l Al dut
52 8 & YR(Als [edototl uxael 332 Rsul oluuwat auRl gl ¥ o8l % 332 Rsul
altua R ot g2l gl dl 810N A HIR 12 H(Eetle] sl Gulol Aaumi wa B.
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URd2le] el o{lA wQueataMi uice] B:

o BRYsd Bud edlaami WA oweusla Aasd: ECLa wst Rl ¥l A
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b) ellQUSla waUlHELRA

(i) ctusla Mesdell wlels Wan . yaagl
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wtll o steusla AUHERIRARA YR@s RA el yed ealacuni acl 8. % sgusla
B AUHELIRAA atgl ¥ ofslol, cucslRell USAR &Rl clsoll Y ealacunl 2l o s A
LISl SAUGELRoll HElA AR S B,
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o o8l & ojslet sl ol YA slusla welrellu

olgl wUAl ofslol gl Aol YA ollausla FAUHERRAHT QUR MR Aral wuacl
AlRUslad HUHUERRA U olgl WUl ofsUlot glRL ol YA UREs yatal A1 oissl
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g UHELIRA 3} ol sRaUHl A B Fud Aol GUoL atseil ellauul s3lell WIlElt
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BorgNogall UQL AMA A B % otusla (Bauoll Dl 10911 vl g RAgstelun
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AUR HIZ Rl AUAl S AUGERRAA o8l ¥ ofslolal olsl ¥ ojsAlatil e2llacunl el

8.

o ol Vol W BRL
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Al gsell WHUR Aol slRIsHl UR AU SIS olgl wal UM ABPAHL AHY sUELR],
ARl Aol Aos WLl Bl oML URL WoHlActct Slell el

3.11 ASS el AsS-UHlel

ULl dRAAHL A5S ol A5S-AUHIAHL AosHi AL ASS, 6l UR BE A5S A AR HBell 3 A2l et
anouo 1 Yyl gst ouniell wsdl Yed uRiadl auglol AHdel ad 8. 3 L sllold HeauHl
AHLA BHHa (Dot B,

Ass Y], Ass Aal &st owoell aul upcdl Ass Ul AsS-UHlotoll [Aest HZ GUs SRl
UAUR Aol SUs{lotl A5 AUEotoll (@ B0l UMt QLML w1 B.

3.12 ARSI UejElel (AloR)

ARSI Aofelotal R HdalHl WA & >R Al cloll Wid3l 1A ¥ Aojelot HOQ ol Aol otll
o ARcllo] UlEol sRelHl AU, wUR Uajelol 58 WAo{l ollotct WA Aol S AR A AR well
AU HER UsAUR Aol aas d313 ealdadl A 8. AR Udjelel 518 Masda Asilld sla
AR Al A AelEld Metsdstt AR A Gualollcioll AHaUNOL HEZ Aot A wlas dd galaamd
AU B,

§Ucll 2AR (Aot-otlgusla RAsd HIR Uojeldt AN AR RAsA ol Bofelotal clsell yeauoll A
gl A B AR ARl Baell alils sud eldd Maesdetl cetstl aurialell estui AU
GUA(cl uH2A YHIG eldail WA © U algl-ofsUlol WAHL SlacclHl AUA B, AR URBSR ¥
Aol ArAUGN GlA R $cll WUWL _AER Aot AUl AMlot YsRe(l Hee Y| Wsai wUA AR A
$R0lA Boeroll AR ARSI Bofelot dF WWOHHT WA B, Al Aot AUl HEEA YRAHL
ol YA el 53 YAadaHi AUA B ol ARSI ojelatadl Aotell YRS cget Head ual A
U AWall dslad d313 yadami Ud 8. dtal atlRusla FaeFlAR Ay usdl (uoll «Il[Qa
Yool HEoalHl wd 8.

3.13 s243L
Ay ARl WAHL 5202 281 (EL.l. BosH 28l SIAEL Hool [ scL AU AHAUAL HER 2etell

sH) ol (B35S 2at WU (Al 52) wacl 332l uHA Al B, wds Aol WA olgl ¥
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gsllototl UaAsHl glaatil A B Rald ¥ wotHdHl Yeuet A elacuul A gl A

dol@d 52 w8l

$02 BoSH 28

502 Bo5H 28l AAsAl AU FAGERRAA HOUR AUAR A 51 el 2t WARARA YysaAcll 280
HetaelHl A 8. 8ol QL3 sal HIZ GUAIHT ActHl WAL 5ARLL £ Aol slAeA UdAL
WHAHL 82 Al RUEDL UHA wHAML el B2

algl AR ofslol Wicloll sslR elaciil WAA 502 BosH 28lal olsl Ul ofslat UAsell  olelR
glaaltil MUAA B. 502 BosH 28lal Vel UHAAS BlcAsHL U cAcslA ¥ Yl Ild sEadlHiotl
UsAciuHl el AAA . AAAHSHSO UHAAR RAlA tauletui vl 28t RecHi AcunHi wAa
HIGlo] Yeuisel 52 & B Ald] USl $2 Fli2Rll >l o] ud i @A sl B.

Bs$ 2a

RUEol N Mesdotl 28t AU Aol walaell dul Aol stgusla RUEDL dqRllell cgst 8H
Aol SIHAAG dAslacll Ul FHEd] Ugldall Gualal s3lal ealccumi wad B.

(35§ 2at e 3R olal % UL SIHAALG dsladl M2 eallaciHl A &, Raua 3:

o AR B35 2atell walreldl wusl wadl 518 Aasd wadl 58 FlHeRlell YAes vl A
claslHiel Gell aat 3 8 caltudl ML ot 8l U caucaslRell UHA A [Bauell otsl wal 52U
gl ¥ ofslolol Sl8 UUR ot §3;

o UatsUo{lAML A5 el AYScl cAcRUCAAHL Ul WA BSEAA 5UA SIHAAG dgleldlsll
B, ¥ 2AR sHAAG dsladlell Ge¥Rell AHAU U [l Andl st ua adl
deldell 3 SIHUAG dglaldlHl ol sell el 518 Gae)R o8l alal

Qcld 52 BlAsdlal ol & 52Ul SIHRAAG dsladl, drlauRAAA &t 332 Ual dulauRAAd 28l
AR ol 1R Aot Aaii w1 B. [Qc@ld 52 Aasda Aecll Halel Yol eallaai 2ud & ¥ Al
deldell B ¥ 52Ul oldl YRl totdl Boll AN U SIHAALG dslall, el WL AAE dRIAURIRAEA
2at 332 el dgauAAA 28t Aol Bual 531 asta, Rata 3:

o AR SAUL SIHAAG dslad dolld Qc@d 52 RAdsd S8 clasietl el Rdsd ¥
FcllolelRloll URl@s wowiell Gell us 8lal URg L cadslrk durR (sl ol wel cldslRell
AHA A (Bl AR ¥ sUA olsl ¥ ofslolal UUR sl olell;

o UatsUo{lRAML ASEN U AYset cAcRAULAAML Aol A AsUAA sUA SIHAAG dsleldsll
doluml, Bs8 2etell v A Halel YUl ¥ 5AY B ¥ SIHAAG dAslaAdHl olsell eldwum
GeteR =N U sUA ol§l Yl 6 Boll AR SIHAAG dsladloll GUlloL 531 aslal.
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ydls RUEbL uHA Bs$ et AAeoll cgot suall wllett scudl A & ua dal Aecll Halel Yl
AU sAA B ¥ Acll Aetlastl oll & ¥ Yl 53U aigloll GUlL W2 B35S 2et A2l GUaldL UM
A, WARsWUBRS (358 28t AAeal Ul s RUIDL AHA Fyelisel sl WA B wa Al
Halel WA elaadi A 8 ¥ Al dewaott Gell awa ¥ eldwaell suwnt o5l (35 2a Aex
Rsalo{l ol wuual.

35S 2at Matsdl uUa wlelFRA 5AAAL Al €2 HAdMl WA B 3 »AUR PAscds] Aurl u
wUcll FAUHER] Yol ad AR A addl A AL} sRadl WA Al Aol AUUR 50 A €2 A ¥ ¥
RUEBL ARlW A2UG ¥ A (B AHAMT e Sl

atsl Aol ofslotoll UAse{l olelR elaail wAc (358 2atal doldl clletdlal atgl ol oslotatl UAsel
olslR RAUaHl el B, Rgf 2al cllotcdlal wH1As dlas AUl 8EAH el A A vddld
AAsRloll UsUGIUHL gl catHl A B.

502 28 FAUGERll AN see 28l AW2eUal AR 531 AslA Al c] 3 AsA Al 85 Rl
gRledl 8l Al (5§ 2at NAzux B8 2at AARAZ wA AR scUHl AUAA © uA (5§ 2ellu
AMlet UL SUo{l ol AMol 28t VAR Uleldl Sl

SUoll AssA AHAdOW E02Alet Mo wals AA eRUE 5 Al AssA WAL aa decll Halel
Yl susllA Actsd d1d MATeU zumi 2et 332 eldd B, el.ct. WA AHANA ¥ Ui &l 3(32a
wL gclloll udaletdl dlat. suell 2at 332 MAdsd 33 218l A i Gsct Acdsda 2at 332 Ml
olgl Ul oslot UASHL AFUHl A B, Ul uds RUEDL fN 2et 332 AAesll wllen s2 B
U MAdsdoll cvll cancudl 2d 8 »al Yl suoll WA Aal AssA YAl o dA ¥ A [Aad
AHAUOU €Ml AL 5ARA Ysall 53 (35S el MAT 28t B(3eall mdal s 8.

3.14 syARlell cle
a) &stouniell sl cdlat

sARIA B Lol Wdtell Aa 2l sl A eauet A Aol HEAMT g5t duouetl sURl
clelloll Ao(3816oRs 8 YsalatHl AUA Acl Vet B. g5t duouell $3{AURL ARlHL UUR, Adet,
Aot AR Ags [Ac AlRAFlaUoll AAA Al B, L 12 wWUHl 12 HEolloll AHAVUOUHT &8
A5 AUl AsSHL 3UARA 531 astal.

b) olls3| WlEall Gl

0] @Bl statell 0ot (Defined contribution plan)
$Uo(lol %2 glRL AR WAsee $05 Axetl A [ABld stouell Aewetill 8. ctas sURRA
Wl WAsee go5ell 25U A8 Suell 204Ae3 WAsee $o5 WA(RE1% (ARSIR &l AAUAA

UAsez o5 At)Hl wHL $AAA 8. SUs{l ul UsRe{l Aol 600 YSAA/YSAAUUA SL0U
Rera susll uR 81 wauwell ol
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UL Aol 601 YsAcrysaadlulAn susll stoual sHAIRAA AUAA Attt AHAUNL
gR2let ol U osUlet WMl e2latcudl WA B.

(i) Bl ctetoll Aeseil (Defined benefit plan)

sHUARAA Nyl go5 Aol SUsllotl (AR cletell Aot 8. wl YsRell Bl cetsll
Alogotialloll SUGERle] Heal ddtliot Yeaisolal UR sAUML WA B, Botl Wsl Ad2le{l
AR UBses Ye 3032 Rausell Gualol wld 8. elSlnysd Alxetllell Bruni, Al
Usoll wAUGHERlA wWanal HER (51805 AlAgle wellodt d601 get walloleFlMiel Asisla
Actsdotl csoll yeaua dalsclHl 2w 8.

AsyIlad dlet wal ARl Ul ¥-yaanll, Masd Haleloll 2R 3 Fuiedl so @QAEA
AL S AUHELR] URell Awul clloll M olle scUML Wl B Wl Alyeitsla Aetsd URd]
dnctr AR AYRAEY gl B AHAUOUHL A AHL cUAA sHIRIA Gul? ¥ orHloll wuR
WA sl ARAAMHT R % galdadi WA B, 3R-YAdRld RURMIEA UHAHL olgl W

ajsllotatl WAsHl 3lell clscd sRaml wad sl

atsl A ofsAletdl WOl Actell UsARA ol Aoll AW g2lacumi waAd B:
o Al 3812 ol AMl welstell AW, ual
o HoilAd RwesUBoL wal sue(l eald A HE-A.

Alvil el ALl Al FELA weUeel3] wacl Aasdul BsiGoall €2 UHAlgA 53la
solHl wlcl B, sUcllA otsl el ofslol UsAsHL Al (ARl cletoll FAUHERML {1 Asll
38R eldc B:

o 52 UlU sl ARl uldu slke, wre AU S, stUcll el WA JRALM wal
EEls ot 8la Ad Aectoe; wal
o AWl ey WL ¥ s

c) e Al duoetl s cet:
sHARRAA diotl ouniell secloll %20 Susll W REA cletsll eyt . ul SlcElRlsll
Aot Yeatoll a1l 12 st wRA2ulell AT WBses e 332 Ausel R Aciii wad B,
elslayiia Alogottalloll (B, el saureldl ealaal 1R eetsla Masdatl asell yeaul

eelSl scllHl el B.

d) eHlaetell et

elRotatl clet Ysaauwat Rt A i [AEDs gl Aol d60all ddlcdRell clell Bell
e{lRatetoll cet g2laaumi wUad 8.
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3.15 AEls suwl

ya AR€ls sl (sUlA)ell 2Rl Suollotl AHA 8EASL URSA WUR o8l ¥ ofslatal ay
£ aletoll ciL8l UM ARe{l (R u2219L g1l Al sl A B.

Bl sUlRAUA 2Ll Susllotl AL BEASL URSA HUUR A5l ¥ ofslolal a e[ 2letall
oltSl WHLeA Aol AR U2AA drll 3UlAR AHA 3l scllHl AlclollR AlHIeA AAe{l eUR UL

glRL Aol scunl wa B,

3.16 AUWL A Al SRR 518 Al HA olot-5202 BlesdAl

Rl Masdle] collswl %l Aoll gt 28U YlaMs DA AUWL skl RsaR aatell sl A Ald collgct
sl Al B Wl Aol At ctuRpn HE2 ealaatiHi vl el dau Auelell G AeAddl 8. Axell
QAR AYTiH clgol HAl ol Al Yt ole AUl UsR YHIl ealaaii wcll & Raua ¥
35S 25 ANAz, sHAURL celHi Gell udd MAasd, steusla Rasdl ua lHiell $2AA dsmetl $AIL
881 & Bual Al w3RaA A [@AANZA YA vyl el 8.

Aasdotl 818 gl yREs ¥ wondl sami wad Hisandl Aasdul gdcl daisiad Al Yed
ale AAell (BHd Yoo ealadadl wUAd 8. Masdall Auull Yeadl UAAl duRlal S0 AACL
cletal Masdsll Qe Bud oie s3la ealaaiil WAA B U A UG ealaclHl A A dLslal
sR0L AAcl Wledl aud ealcatl vuda ol el Adsdett Auell A w10uG of galcal sl
dal clet 3 vileal (335%{loetoll AW ealctcunl A 8.

Ul sl UR g olelHl ¥ Al pRYsct sail wcll otell, Aol Qg 1R ealacunl 2l 8.
st ARdal Al Aetsdlal et MAsdl scl AARL HRell MAasdla uetol Id dollsd seuxl
ulcll B,

UAUAA sH(EL A SUlloll As Ues B B HISL claltHl WA B AUl AARL HIZ £ 2laleltHl AUAA
& uA A Gelololl Mol Yuat olletcd el siH(3letl elloll@s (Qretire] UlARER« 52 B B il YsiRe{l
(Rl ol sclloll As AYsd Alxolloll As GOl B AUl A $31 AURL scllotl BRAEL A
WetsUollal sl salMl el B, v sH(Rletl URRUMA olgl Wl ofslotoll UASHL UADL
gallaauHi wad 8.

3.17 ALLs, UsEAS FAGlEZRA W YOS AetsAl

Wl deatllal UReUA ddiet dHaHl sceeldl Gell ug slat Aall ABNAHL gloteeRAla e2lalalml
AUl B wEls cllelHl @UHl Aol Al sllEyale MR sleelIl Yol selsll 32 @9 Al
g AUHERo{l U WUR (Qato{lad 2iglnl gallcll sl AMlol YslRell AASRlol Aajelel glRl Ylid
UAA H3clotl deolul AeAd uRRUHsL AAEASHSNoll Yeauisotad wUR 5AI allaelle{l Slotclee]
(Aedlot scuul wAA B, 2R SUsll el o ¥ uYs AILUSBU CRULS Scll BB AR HRULSSL UL
Masd 3 ealaadl AAA B, URd @R o ¥ AR eRWE dld(ds A Wss slat. dlcisal
ALl WAL %L 58 GRULS Sl L A WlE $3Lal ol§l el ofsllotoll UAAsHL elctcll WA B.
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el stopell elal, yeaisat, €5, Uatcdl cdR Bl Wleal ALl sozoorllotl (BUml lotcusal R
glaail aucl & 2R Aeldd sl ¥ waleell Gell ay sl ol >R AssU WMol el caudl
AslA A sl

elldioll stdstdl vle 1R sotatsla galaatii vl otell. $uell gt RsAIol 12 (Aotdaur %=L
el seUHl U] AR ole RgsARol Mol Wolaugllal ealaaiil vl & el 2o well
s 5A B ¥ SUs{l Aloyolle] HAlSWL A3 sl tlle WAl WUURAYXA UA Aol Yyt Al@scARA{l
dAd sl clle % RsuRoL sl AL,

222 Al YUsRell dgll wUHelF R B R Al AsUAl B ¥ Uclae HIR %33 elSla 2l (gl Ayel
wAHELSlo(l ARl rlletMl A8l scUHl wd. AHlet ARAHL URAA 88 uRl waleeldl ugdl ad a
allo{l UL 3M ot 8l UR Aal cdldll elSloell Ysarll Bds{l Solces] ual Reglot saml we] 8.
Rl uMaetl dd slctell el lell Udiae M2 %331 WA Bdlell UAASHSOtl A6 U ELS)
yorol gLty s Al B ol Aol ccdilot Yool wAR vl well atell. Wl ua siusla
WAL el AAEASHSNoll ARl HUUR o158l 5AAA B, AMol YUSRell cAASIRloll Aojeclal JUUR
U AYs (BRUHL LA ARUAA UBAUAR BWUUIR otss] sRAUHHL WA B.

Rl Hizell Blotels otssl sl UHA s5ct (R32sAINDL 6lRL Uollr Ucdel WRAell o AHdL Al B,
R oialoll cacRall RzsURoL glrl sReiml A A %331 & wa A SUslloll ccdiiol ygl WA AslAd
ol

o{lAetl (SRUML USRAS el e 5132 scUHl Ll B:

1. wedl dealHiel adiietdl uslAd saluelZl AR d Aelldd of slal walleell MEL sl
HER A Aol 232 us;
2. wodl dealMidl aduietil uslAd valleFl AR d 1 518 [dudella vieed st o
8l
3. wodl uedrlHiell dduistil Axlalr daldd saloeld], sl Yl A olelR wscllell sl
yldgmn sl
yUlbls wscoetdAA galactii ucll ol wal %l A elllds 8lat Al Aol ottauslal UASIHL ol A3l
&2 scllHi il B.
uUssMs Acsd Al Az Adsd B ¥ Wl deatlul Gell €A B U Bof kA As ¥ dy
alQruoll wuAssU Yot olotcllell ¥ ol wotatell o oissl s30 AslA. al ot Ayyl A susllstl
(@i otell.
YRIOs RAasda steuslal uasii ealaami wAd otell 31k Al 5120 wase] [edot a % saRa
Yl e3U A o8l wH O, YRIOs MASAN Actcl BHW 3601 AWCHL A B ua %l s
cdlet &l Adl dRAsdAl dal Al Fasd wal Aoildd vasal B AHaUOUHT U8 A R elaaHl
ulAd B.
YiRBls Metsda stuslar ussiHl ol a3y ealccuHi vl & s s cet acell detdstt B.

Rl ERA, USRS FAHERRA uA Ybls Resdell uds wst udaell W wlen saul
ud V.
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3.18 ALUULREL Hlolcll

$2clls AlssA YL, wlas ¥ W] s€, UsR & d 3ol weell ¥ B suUslloll UM YgRA coldl
ala ual Aol ealacuell susllell 50003 Aol ARl YURL Ul 8 A Adl vuas ¥ wlal
ARG ol d3l3 cllsc sraml Ul ® ual ¥ Yol otusla ussloll Aol olluni xd

scllHl Ll B.

3.19 Rt axasun aiedl uestl

HRAuA AL BAozt (3 B Al RAA Yral YL WS & A wsl AU dRW 8l B) ¥ ¥
ust dRdalell ARl olle 42 ® Aol attauslal waslHL eallcicami A 8. ust ddaulell dAdlu olte
dedl ol Asxol sAced (Usl Ul ARl aieall sl wliesll wrlde RAA) ¥ ® ellds
$9Re] YAl 52 B Aol olusla RAA HUWYKA cdUollal ol g (Brsedall wdacnl
glaadl el 8.

4. olluwiat Baell Ystelll, el ua AUIRA

SUollotl ollQuslal UASl daulR scll AMA AUASHSA B2clls YsLELRA, e ol BUSRA scllell %32
Ul B B Wed], W, Aetsd AR wAGERIA{l /U dall WMol HMERAA AU AlSUAS scllotelFAe(l
BEAcAA WA 5 B, Bl WOUSRA daul el AAASHSNotl AolBcd Ucldloll Heauisel ual oSl
Uasoll dAldluotl Aol URRAAl UR AR . Assu URRUH AL BEE $cl WA A& 2AZ BD. VLN
Ul sclHl AUAA wouSlAAl ug DA wlew seul el 8. Rauell dedHl srauml wad
38R0l Al AHAOUHL elccltHl AlcAl B AR Aol WEISHL FH1R sallHl AUAA Sl Ul elldruni
UAR Uclloll Aeuastt sl

Ul ol Al clldcd Bidloll HUBAL AA B ¥ BUL G setloll [ulal wacll %3lAdl WAA B Wal AHa
VAAHT YA salMl el dcll Aol 5cll BEIS]L Aol AUWLULRA AUAL el Sl Asil 5RA AN
ALHL AUAA B, vl YUAS el Wal [ARlD idlell (Qotcdar MUl dol@ct AL otRuslal ussiHi
WU ottt Bdlefl dtaLAlott AtetR ANl HUBAL ULA UM AA B.

4.1 $Us{loll Bauoll olQAA @] scUML olluulA YSLEWRA

$uo{lo{l (dauell oAl M0l ylsauul, AASAHSA (Al ARl sl & B otlRuslal usASIH
gallaictHi A 51 UR Al dlluust AUUR UAA B:

YRMEls 2w qHA AuliSae 32q alsoll yeaiset

SUlR YReHl s dallEae 3ea clxoll 4 eallcal B B Aol cAsR AMAl YL $cll
UA B, AASR UHA YU U clxoll el dAsll dsladal AR ojelot 33 eallateunl
AUAA B 3UF gl Yo dF AR Rsl HAA Al YRl 52 B, AR WA HAA
ARSI UGl WHELAE AR A UBs2oll HowslaA slitsiiell Qs 1 Hglsd Wl 1R 8, Gel. a3}
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4.2

ollol-5Rc2 AAYU H(2o] UojElat, Bl MeAscoll UMRlol WA lltHl @8 doll GuA(l Hel Yol
atgl Aol ofsUlel UASHL e2lccltHl AA B,

e WA AOUSL

el @oldl Aelzu Ul Al RUWEDL AR Aol UASSUSALAL Huad Ad 3 B ol

sllausla afui Metsd Aol wlaelRRA(l asel sHHL HRIuA AsHRAcR] dAltUlA AWM UAA B
A oA eallaai waa &

olld 19 — YR AUl BRI

ol 21 - /888 52 Wl

ol 23 — WISRAS wUHERRA AR Aetsdl
alld 25 — (351805 AlAgle WGAN U] URMIEL
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als wdalc

2017-18

sl sla uatslel Al
oltl 5.4 Al ydlsed

(3. Ay
3%-1
ot oy exaulot o exaulot o eaet  [31.03.2018¢1t A
.04.201761L A% tcl e
Lt AR ¥ AmLdlwet| Yalsial siA wle ¥ ySlgd RrEE
Ralot (Ralotoll vigRell cllallsse URd) 9,263.72 16,620.15 - 25,883.87 - 25,883.87
30 22,233.70 10,120.79 - 32,354.49 - 32,354.49
classe @aet Aoy 30,546.22 35,788.33 - 66,334.55 - 66,334.55
259lol Al UlclR ALl 293.51 180.60 - 47411 - 47411
%ol e, ot c2orlloll W 12,003.22 9,044.55 - 21,047.77 - 21,047.77
YRl wAsalal wl 280.19 1,292.49 - 1,572.68 - 1,572.68
Yotclatot A Yot Ustall 1,678.28 1557.13 - 3,235.41 - 3,235.41
USG5 witlsiH - 8,854.53 - 8,854.53 - 8,854.53
yat - 418.34 - 418.34 - 418.34
3ed 8odo2dl - 4,303.94 - 4,303.94 - 4,303.94
el AR (A) 76,298.84 88,180.85 - 1,64,479.69 - 1,64,479.69
Hls0L asl A dal wisfRs Wi (eel ol 5.A1) 8,805.86 7,676.66 - 16,482.52 - 16,482.52
WLE ;a6 8 (244.48) (9.04) - (253.52) - (253.52)
WlE : URd et @BA3RS 39U €.77) - - (1.77) - (L.77)
el-ARalAl (B) 8,559.61 7,667.62 - 16,227.23 - 16,227.23
§6 C = (A+B) 84,858.45 95,848.47 - 1,80,706.92 - 1,80,706.92
oy exalot oy exalot o exaulot 31.03.2018ell
ot ol A% A e
Ll AR ¥ AmLdlwet| Yalsial siA wle § ySlgd A A
o2 {lot (@sta, YRellél @slol AU o2l W 35,587.21 - - 35,587.21 - 35,587.21
ALE: 33-1 Rcttatstiuaisiell vle W2 %lotels @ieel oy 29) - - (11,584.21) (11,584.21) - (11,584.21)
Y5l asl a Aol uisfis Wi (deal ol 5.A2) 3,035.62 - - 3,035.62 - 3,035.62
el-ARAlA (D) 38,622.83 - (11,584.21) 27,038.62 - 27,038.62
[ $6 E = (C+D) [ 1,23,481.28 | 05,848.47 | (11,584.21)] 2,07,74554 | - 2,07,74554 |
[ weg o [ 71,867.65 | 51,613.63 | = 1,23,481.28 | -] 1,23,481.28 |

et SUo{lol et Uott 3oL 201040 A s A% SR HALGA SUoll A3 e cll. UR Glle SUsllal WHELAE AZ A WBse rlotl HAlSQs 3 AEA WA
2015M0 GlRA ARH1R U IRl ARERe{l URWL Bruloll Ysel AU SUML FULARA sl Lell. 2ot 1ot 8RR SUollotl FUlcR Ul YA WA "§xl
Retasit Wl ddls uaol s dsn ealaami uAc 8. uel A ollug %33 B ¥ UYsel Ulsell Ul Udell sUs{l 100 251 A% WRsRel HUALGAl Sucll scll uR Foxl
Rettaetl W A2 WRsR 1L Y2 uscinl wAA sEAAMIE scuHl el sl
$orbll (Baolell A A o2 GAA Fedlot 12, SusllR Fo1u0UGA WAR RS scll M2 (Aol 531 B B W Aysct ALsAll Uil USEL scUML B &l
3.31200 Allw AR A3 oot Hollal ARt AeRABAR 32l FUldRA scll A ctRiel 251 Rellos scll [Qolcdl s3c B, A% USLR 4 %L, 2016 A% 6AL SHISMIS-
112014-1100-1-DH ¢48l2 Utslal 331 Rcltaiett Wl M2 3. 46700 ctivte(l yoRlEAAUA 3.31200 cltvtoll AR uURYe(l 2 sHal UL cltilRAetl UoRARAZ 32Hi 3uildrd s2altsll

Hogdl W B,

aAyMl R WRSBR UG ol i eR2et 3.15500 AL ARl ARABA2 32 s wUdat B, (Rieel ollu 11.3)

alt 5A1: HSlsel otdl 2 et wsEAs WAle] uAs - 33-1

(3. GLUH)
[Qatd 31-3-201741L A% [ 2017-18 €(N2Ulel [ 31-3-201801L A%’
w3
sAA cletstl Wl 2,621.93 1,564.35 4,186.27
dUR 2,827.65 1,777.99 4,605.65
B WY 117.85 243.03 360.88
@2 @elluadlie (o) - 1,432.27 143227
adlad wi 3,998.78 1,872.30 5,871.08
st (A) 9,566.21 6,889.94 16,456.15
PCRINED
L WA @leal oAlta) 2,081.77 2,081.77
st (B) - 2,081.77 2,081.77
Uldls
Bstsos ARE2 wettortoll RRyctcgllell ude ctat 5.03 37.92 4295
2052 4 244.48 9.04 25352
Rsar adct @sll3zs 3@y 177 177
d (C) 251.28 46.96 298.24
A Ydlstlul dotélell
oo o2l Ml deglell 20.70 - 20.70
AUCHL dUEldl s3cd A2 vlls Yaell bLIYEA 734.62 1,257.13 1,991.75
c (D) 755.32 1,257.13 2,012.45
H3lsal el A dat get usfAs WAl
8,559.61 7,667.62 16,227.23

D = (A+B) - (C+D)

olltl-a: L REHUL 805 AAYU 23 oyol (A2 2 Aotoll QL v A3l 251 3.1792.79 At A s WAL llet Aletsll cltogel

13.288.98 GlLUoll A MUl B,

ot 5.A2: 481520t gl fa Adl sRAs wAle] uAs - §3-| Ra (3. AWM

[otd 31-3-2017¢1L A% [ 2017-18 E(R2Uet [ 31-3-201801 A%’
el Alotoll ML ] e cattes wl 2,822.33 - 2,822.33
s clet Wy 1,24343 - 1,243.43
adlad wal 1551.34 - 1,551.34
2l W (2,581.48) - (2,581.48)
3981 Reuaiott ydlseal oidl Qa Aat gt 2usfs wal 3,035.62 5 3,035.62
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et sla uasle(l ol
At 6 Adlclds Masdl

als wdalc

2017-18

(3. cluLH)
dldlds Adsdl slnejer Alsedr AB2 2 Y% $cl
Usd?
31 ML, 2016ell A% 768.93 - 768.93
AUl 23.74 43,786.10 43,809.84
gelsl - -
31 {1, 20171l A% 792.67 43,786.10 44,578.77
aulA 24.03 - 24.03
ER - - -
31 {3, 20186l A% 816.70 43,786.10 44,602.80
HRY(EA U YAl Yeldl
31 {1, 201601l A% 232.51 - 232.51
ad eR ot BRY(5L 227.14 734.62 961.76
LR - -
31 {1y, 20171l A% 459.65 734.62 1,194.27
ad eR ot BRY(5 206.48 1,257.13 1,463.61
galsl - . }
31 {1, 2018ell A% 666.13 1,991.75 2,657.88
sc
31 {3, 2018ell A% 150.57 41,794.35 41,944.92
31 {3, 2017+l A% 333.02 43,051.48 43,384.50
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altl 7 etleusla Metsdl

7 (a) dlol

(3. AluH)

(Qatdl

31 12, 201801l A%

31 13, 2017611 A%

|
AUAAMA ugl wdl

PAUASAY (@ WA Bl aruen 16,411.12 25,232.55
16,411.12 25,232.55

56l ol 16,411.12 25,232.55
7 (b) AsS Aol AsS -HMlol 3. At

[Aatcdl 31 u(3], 201801l A 31 (3], 2017411 A¥
Acsl W ¥l Rcts
AL WLcAlHL 911.37 303.08
UL WML (3 HBotl Yelloll et wscll yed ud) - 10,500.00
AUURL WAL (2L ¢y Agél) 187.49 155.56
8lU UR ¥ARSS - -
SEL A5S Vol A5S -YMlol 1,098.86 10,958.64
7 (c) ¥e olRUSlA Metsdl @ e

(datdl 31 {3, 201801l A%¥ 31 {3, 201761l A%
AAAHA ugL Al
(i) 2l

RsRE By 97.15 102.70

97.15 102.70

|

RsRRE By 706.88 640.95
Bses RUofledt uR GUUFA cauey 4.82 5.97

711.70 646.92

scl oSl wala el 808.85 749.62
7 (d) sellelR atudla Mesdl 3 clum)
(Qatdl FVTPL FVOCI Y5 (Brd
31y, 2018
Alet 16,411.12
A5S Blal A8S -UHlot 1,098.86
Al olleusla MAetsdl 808.85
sc olusla Aasdl 18,318.83
31 w1y, 2017
Alot 25,232.55
A5S Blal A8S -UHlot 10,958.64
AUl olleusla MAetsdl 749.62
sc otlusla Aesdl 36,940.81

sllRWSla BorgNozell SH HULAotoll 32l Ul ofl[ARA HZ llu 31 %3l

Ao Yeuotl [eelot 12 ol 30 %A
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AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS 2017-18

sl sla ussle(l ol

ollu 8: s /U Mesd

(3. ALuLMi)
(Qatdl 31 {13, 2018411 A% 31 {13l 201741l A%
Rl
3ec Asaedlld 67,537.35 32,043.85
Ascllodd BosH 25U (FOLCLE GULE) 65.91 16.74
ulH Ysdd WAl - 6.52
67,603.26 32,067.11
AY
Ul Ascllo{lA - 0.21
RUgaA WU Ascllor - 0.09
WUEY Ysdct WA 46.75 1,214.63
46.75 1,214.93
5t 67,650.01 33,282.04
(33522l @ 8l AR (33522 ¥ wiotdll SuUollal WA Ascllot - -
52 Retsdl (Al
(3. AluMi)
(Qatel 31 {13, 2018411 A% 31 {13, 201741l A%
sl woflH Ysarll ual Haawt AsAx 1,337.85 2,254.20
OlLE
$AR1 HI2ell loteus (1,271.94) (2,237.46)
5t 65.91 16.74

88




als wdalc

AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS 2017-18

alauslal uasle(l At
e 9 85U AHSL

(3. cluH)
Qo 31 {3, 201801l A% 31 U3, 201741l A%
A2e(| Avaul 3. AUl A2(l Avaul 3. AlH
Ardlark AR y§l
3.10401 As lal 858l AR 40,000.00 4,00,000.00 40,000.00 4,00,000.00
Wk Wid sl eRAA AR Y5l
3.1001l As Acl 8EAL| A 18,512.10 1,85,121.00 15,512.10 1,55,121.00
CRIAA A Yol elws YAd AR
3.1040l A5 Val 858l AR 18,512.10 1,85,121.00 15,512.10 1,55,121.00
56 1,85,121.00 1,55,121.00
9.1. R3ETol AMAAl UIRA UA A oltfl Are{l A awll
(3. AluH)
Roldl 31 {3, 201801l A% 31 H13, 201741l A%
A2e(| vl 3. Al A2e{l vl 3. Al
AH A OUAYLRA 15,512.10 1,55,121.00 13,252.10 1,32,521.00
GAA :
oy (2l 3 53 AR 3,000.00 30,000.00 2,260.00 22,600.00
AU oltsl 18,512.10 1,85,121.00 15,512.10 1,55,121.00

9.2. 858 A2 WA HslA ARAV S8

§Uoll As o adloll AR AeA ¥ 8(5ALL AR UAA B Bof Heat YA AR 310 B. UAs ARURS loll WA 3l As Ae{l AN As
dlzell AURSIR UAA B. [As<l32totatl Baruui, sEAZ AulREl UsAeA2AA 5HAl aduell wle suslloll wtll o BsAHA
AAES0lell YHIRHL Mnaal HIZ Adls .

9.3. 5Uo{lui 5 2stell Yy A2 YAl ARURS WA Bl gt AR

Q2411 28lolL oLl 31 gtai, 20181l A% ' 31 gtai, 2017411 A% '

A2l Fuall A28l esloLell % A2l Auall N8l eslatell %
9% Actoll HEHEH AAUWA 4ol dHoll oMol 11,000.00 59.42 11,000.00 70.91
uém@{{ ARUQ A Anell AR (2831 7512.10 40,58 4512.10 29.00
@sta {oua)

18,512.10 100.00 15,512.10 100.00

9.4. WAl Wi a¥ e alet Yol eRUe A ollotdt AR 3y Al ol A Ass HIT o3 scuml AAA AR : Yo

9.5. 5Uq{l 88 aleslot susll uradl otel.
9.6. 3Uect NAwNootl &, olllA 2 YlBau 2, eal ol suis 32

ol 10 : and) A 86 wgul Rl Bogllaal

(3. AluH)
Ras 31 13, 201801l A 31 U3, 201741l A%
oAt URBIR ARl (clullRAo] AU Bate 32) 46,700.00 31,200.00
(eal ollu 11.3)
56 U 8533 46,700.00 31,200.00
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AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS 2017-18

stlelsla unAsle(l ol

alt 11 : wel 8EASL

(3. AL
31 113, 201701l A%

Ras 31 {13}, 20181t A%

alltl 11.1 AR Are{lBaletoll olllU
AR AuellBatotell oliau (Rleel «llu (i) «1)
Bl sllRllaA R Agall Yool YRid - 31,200.00

GRA / (olte) Y e alototl 32812 - (31,200.00)

altl 11.2 AeltHAl u Res
olgl U ofsUlel WosHl Rlcts

Bl sttt slauatsl yesolo{l Yaid 3,804.62 1,635.67
G / (ALe): ad HIZoll 8l ¥ Wl (10,448.02) 2,168.95
(6,643.40) 3,804.62

SC olid A Rets (6,643.40) 3,804.62
sl U 86AZ] (6,643.40) 3,804.62

()R URSR 4 YL 201601l A 6A sULS: MIS-112014-1100-1-DH o3 8c B B 3601 WBs2oll 3031 Rcllaloll W W2 3.46700 Alre{l el
A2 el Hydl vuatil WA B. L WA usl a2l Al Y3sid ddd ealcainl 2uddl. AR 3l Rasdla e ¥ e alle
GUAIHL ActMl WA @R dulAoll YAEAZ 32 ALy ANE 3.46700 AW (UBEL doll 3.31200 AW [¥2Act URBIR{l BEALML FuidRd
sRcllil Al dtlRuoll ABlBA2e] 8EASML FUldR Y BuA sl . wiell, $us{lal FuldR dlal Adl 8rgeeda AyY 863 azunl
gallalcllil WA B A AN A BEAL Hatnl GUR A AR YSloll oA galccuni wAd B. ;

alltl 12 : ollausl elolel3ll

12 (a) Elell dloell oL (3. v
(aatdl 31 3], 20180l A% 31 U3, 201741l A%

Alodl Sl BBl (ol (a) ol Aeel)

Rl
(QAotost Retutat
fUlel Bo2AAAA SRAURAA Ae{l (JICA) AR5l Ml URSIR (PTA) glRL 57,527.39 14,972.43
- AR URBR ARl (U3 32) 1,540.21 876.35
- 9JosRAcd ARBIR gl (RS2 32) 1,025.65 928.43
56 bRl 60,093.25 16,777.21

olltl (i):ellRel ARSI UA YAl UBWR cdrgell UAE callr-Yscl AHBMEAR 32 %031 W2 sl WAL cllRet Yyl dlot MU Uil UIE Yselalulol
3. A 8sto{l Alotoll AHAUON 30 aY B A U wlday 1.40 est B.

alle (ii): L8R RscRold vz 3RAHL e st dlot, HOollR Ul U ollRll UAALAAeAL 5 3g NS, AsIGo2U Aos B2 ({AAN) adl 2ell
Ancgll slet oL @Aul B U BeA A gl uuA % 818 AMl %t s Al A talletul Actdl

12 (b) 25 QAue

(3. ALHMD)

(Aol 31 HI3, 201841l A% 31 HI3, 2017¢1L A%
Ale

UoA 25 U 34152 201.83

sl 34152 201.83

12 (c) el alRUSla cllolelll @ el

@atdl

31 {13}, 201861t A%

31 13, 2017611 A%

e
sl ysaaiuat 116.94 106.32
3ect 9598 Aollld yYgaauuint 14,901.10 4,541.28
R URBIR dRgell W Y R (PTA) 16,141.79 10,330.93
oA ollRU Sl el ole L2 100.69 1,376.53

$d 31,260.52 16,355.06
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AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS

st ustslel ot
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12 (d) sell Yool aleuglal elloleldll @ c)
[QotAl FVTPL BRLYsd [FUA
31 HL, 201801l A
Bl 60,093.25
dulr Ysaaulat 341.52
ol ol Sl wallete L3l 31,260.52
sc ollousla walolelFlall 91,695.29
31 w13, 2017
Bl 16,777.21
dulr Ysaaulat 201.83
ol ol Sl wallete L3l 16,355.06
se stuslal aotela 33,334.10
UL Sl AL Lolloll I H ALl 3l A o{lAB0 12 ollt 31 9
20102 YeRloll [Ag 2ot HIZ olltt sHIs 30 %l
altl 13 *latalgll

(3. AL
[CER 31 {13, 20180l A% 31 WL, 201741l A%
ll

sifadl clet W2 Soteus (sl 25 o)

ARyl M2 Hlolaly 64.79 65.45
SIUALS Wodad HIZ SIS 51.24 42.61
116.03 108.06
Al
sifadl clet W2 Sloteus (sl 25 %)
DR RIEE ARIETE) 1.63 0.95
SIUALS Wodod HIZ SoLll® 24.15 51.45
25.78 52.40
scl 141.81 160.46
Al 14 QAU A8 udfElot
(3. AWM
Aol 31 L3, 201801l A% 31 {13, 2017411 A%
el
(A AR813 Asjelet RlEC ollu-14(a)) 51,979.37 39,915.56
B28es Wgse RUE dallr scll HIR oAt ABR dRgell HAA Hsjelat (eal
atlet-14(c{l)
5l 51,979.37 39,915.56
14 (a) QA o 4513 Befelol (3. clwui)
31 Y], 20180l A% As at March 31, 2017
1 3Rl Ay 39,715.56 23,635.18
ad g2t HAA 11,333.59 16,080.38
31 W Aol A% 51,049.15 39,715.56

Yeclls 2@l Aesd, Wiz wal AlUAUHIM(MAEL HZ UL WojElol HAA B. 31 HIYoll A% WL Boj€lol AR A Yyl ol

98 8l dcll 2Rl #stAcl ol

14 (b) B2ses WlBse RUE dallr srell At U8R sl A UofElot (3. GlVLH)
31 HI3, 201861l A% As at March 31, 2017
1 AN AL A 200.00 200.00
ay eR2let HAA 1,500.00 -
oy eN2let cuRAL 769.78 -
31 HLAell AY 930.22 200.00

AA-@Aos AsAYU B2 2L Lloto1R Wos WUMELAE (RO SUo{l [AMZsatl For-Il AMoy YRl Aol B2ees Wse RUWE AR scll MR Bojelot HAA B

ot 15 Ao Al /el welsleldal

(3. AWM

(Qatdl 31 {13, 201801l A% 31 "I, 2017+11 A%
Al

slofofl ectlote 3l 558.17 899.43

558.17 899.43

5cl 558.17 899.43
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LR slal uatsle{l ol
ollel 16 : W BUAS

als wdalc

2017-18

(3. ALHUAH)
[CEIT 2017-18 2016-17
HAA e 1,457.73 2,892.66
URYRWL ALAs 231.53 39.03
RAR REtsclett AL UR o8l (RAuull) 1.46 4.38
(@zall [@Qellasll cley/sgsulet (AL - 198.78
HLSL cldiet URYREL YRicl/ Klotaltgsll 9.45 -
sCL 1,700.17 3,134.85
ol 17 : 531U cletotl W2
(3. ALHUAH)
[CEIT 2017-18 2016-17
UDUR, Aclol, A2l el oot 1,419.47 1,196.03
53U cletall eiSlnett stoll 144.88 126.30
sCL 1,564.35 1,322.33
ol 18 : sl glaL wd
(3. ALWUAH)
[CEIT 2017-18 2016-17
2 Al UR cauls 23.89 -
SAA UR <l 0.03 -
ALBEte 32 caley 213.68 114.33
s@eNoz AT Bt PTA U cau - 2.87
Vol Ul WA 5.43 -
sCL 243.03 117.20
ollel 19 @ AR WA »RLY (ELud
(3. ALWUAH)
[CEIT 2017-18 2016-17
alrc(ds MAAsA URell YR (Rieel Al 5) 314.38 335.82
wWaRAAs RAcsA R bRy (Rieel «ld 6) 1,463.61 961.76
sCL 1,777.99 1,297.58
llel 20 : oA WA
(3. AL
[CEIT 2017-18 2016-17
@zl QA H2aAl vz Rlvu) 1432.27 -
adladl wd
cAlgole] QS wal dal AUalalall WA 207.11 182.63
Alexofl v 35.71 36.60
eus 332.38 187.31
$dRl Ml €A 5.80 83.59
flatef alaat 3.26 3.71
oAU WL 89.66 187.82
slojoll el calau@s 4l 443.88 272.99
SLGAU-(B3UloL el Ao WL 85.17 39.61
Ulgse Sacluies el Yillalel W2l 6.31 122.73
Rs20(RE Aaall WA 269.08 230.69
AU R 71.70 65.97
Sl1jeR el UsSlAS Gllolclloll W2l 32.27 23.47
Boeale el 2(ASlet W2l 27.91 25.11
Qodlot A RW2UAI WU 28.33 22.20
VU UR UL Al ABetolort WULFolU W2 256.15 -
s3ARL Al w2l 49.82 28.99
RUBEs e Wl uRaset w2l 4.46 2.13
Aottt Wl 0.02 1.18
URYRQL WL 13.73 4.37
AseARAl astnarll 29 w2l 45.33 47.79
AR 13 sall UR R1U SYEloll WA 40.00 12.60
UlBseal GOlcll WMol UYL W2 4.99 1.52
Yot wRA 50.29 47.89
HRAHA Al sl Wl - A 14.24 8.32
A3eAa Ysarl
R2w2yed 2ABe w2 10.85 8.66
sCL 3,560.72 1,647.88
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AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS 2017-18

alRusla uASlell ollell
olltl 21 : BALUREL olletcll

(3. Alw)
(Qatdl 2017-18 2016-17
ALy Y3sL8ell Heaunl watstell BoLas (Rieal
ol 29) 11,584.21
el 11,584.21

olltl 21: d 2014-15 €M 2Alel 3.115,84.21 clvto{l DA Slatl A (Brtlell AW el Al sl vl A w2 WA RAAUL
WgpUBUR olllcialtui el aue U 2l SsE sraldl WA B U sl stojoll UBaAL ALGHT B. woUG Sus{lR Faoll
WoLsHL AU BUAL USAL AL Ftotl (A ystel Yl As Slelloll Al sl sdl. U @ioll stofell lBal st uReun
lclallHl ug uH cld ad 8g 1411 20082 ARl dt. 16x1 aeis 2018011 Ao HAC Assul G5t 81 W2 31l W,
201801l A%ell olsl U ofslotoll UASUL HloLcle scllell [Aulal sl el wiell 3031 Rcuaetl Al Yslstani deell suall
a2l gl &dl.

A2 AR F3-1 Rctiaell Al HSlstdatl wAA Sl cocl HI2 3.46700 Alvell dtllRUsll AoBAER2 32 13l 53 o, wuell
303 12 A Ulclott g YSlstal uR 518 uUR s o8l

ollt 22 : wlels A
311 a3, 2018 el 311 1L, 201701l A% YR Acll Al HIZ udlels ARAoll WRsll Hul sl 1A yorw B

(3. Alw)
(Qatdl 2017-18 2016-17
al§l Aol ofsdUlote] UAS
Al AR

ALY wds A 308.18 965.29
@Qe@d 52
Qe 52 w2 @led ollu B)

weal dxllel 5a (0.35) (1.52)
algl Aol ofslol UASH 1A Alas ARl W 307.83 963.77
52 WA ol ARl A Buloll gl Us 5AA £ AU JJlallHl WA B.
A) Al s (3. cluu)
CET 2017-18 2016-17
A s(lAuiell 52 udcllol Bautoll 18 (10,140.19) 3,132.72
52 34.608% oll €% (31 M3, 2018: 34.608%, 31 H(3], 2017: 34.608%) - 1,084.17
ERIEAL
ULl celloll Ul ulels ARLetl BrruMl (0.35) (1.52)
A Wl AU UMY HI2 UletMl ot Al vuas/my 499.75 (188.33)
U Gell AM2UL0Us{l oL - 69.45
QY AR ds UR A (MAT) (191.57) -
vlels ARLoll WAURS £ (HIA 31, 2018 : N.A.), (HIA 31, 2017 :30.765%) 307.83 963.77
B) [Qci(dld 52

allclat (3ol QN (805 NBU 12) "vllcls AR Yoo, sUs{lal ol A Yool [AcAd 56l sctnel3] wat Adsdlell oyl
SO B

WH i, WBs2oll YeldHlol detss, suUcflotl vluRalet 23 Uclloll Vel U elAwiatl 52Ul otgloll A(Acddlat taual At
QA 52 PASA 805 WANU 12611 VRA 27 B 28 Yoyl (ACAA A 52 welle elFlofl Halell o AERIA sReunl vl B,

(3. Alwl)

(QatAl 2017-18 2016-17

() QlQd 52 s eldof siu:
ulels AR UL, 1961w sUs{l UL, 2013 Yol Al HSlstdatl 25

Ol Vot WSBe2 AP AWRAaAl dglelcd 672.28 -
672.28 -

B) QA d 52 Metsde] siruL
AL ALl M2 oL sA 49.55 -
AYdH Asl@s 2su 332 1,804.46 -
VLN ALl HL AULAEA 52 Ve 8.61 -
1,862.62 -
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AA-[@Aos AsuA 512 dlitlletdR Aos AHELCLE (ROW) sUl @RS 2017-18

slleusla uaslell oAl

ollt 23 : atlQUElA uASlol ctuRiell MRl

(i) 2R WUAERA (3. )
Bl 3l Wi, 20180 AY 313l Wi, 201741 A
Yol adat axf Yol wdet af

ol Aell 12 UsEAs Wl el2Aell Alotels A otell
Al eladl ¥ Foll A 5Uoll 2ol 33 2cllsRct otell

sl sl 5,178.01 4,839.19
oot - ]
UM ds01 Bl 52 el 984.95 925.05
(i) 4l U B wUAHERB (3. Al
Becl 3il W, 201801 A% 31l Wi, 201741 A
Yol sdat axf Yol wdet axf
Y3l aaeldl
@2oll U Ulddot Aall Hlopised 3 B 3ed 6,64,908.81 5,10,549.57

AslBoMl AMAlS AU ot A AUl

gallcteul el o St doll BeR 8H
ole: 302 Asclled 49,064.30 20,292.48
3ed Asclled olle s3Il 6,15,844.51 4,90,257.09
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

!

Dear Shareholders,

It is my proud privilege to welcome you all to the 8th Annual General Meeting of Metro-Link
Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmadabad (MEGA) Company Limited (A 50:50 SPV of
Govt. of Gujarat and Govt. of India) for the financial year 2017-18.

As you are aware, your company is entrusted with the responsibility of implementing
'Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project-Phase-1'". The project traverses through two corridors viz. East-
West (Vastral Gam to Thaltej Gam) & North — South (APMC to Motera Stadium), spanning on
32 stations covering a distance of approximately 40 kms. There are total 4(four) underground

stations on the East-West Corridor of the project.

Your Company is committed to provide a safe, speedy and seamless world class rail based
Mass Rapid Public Transport System in and around Ahmedabad city, and to fulfill this

commitment, teams of ardent professionals and engineers are working round the clock.

The financial year 2017-18 has been the year of enhanced optimism as significant progress
was witnessed in project Implementation activities on both the corridors. During the year under
review, all civil construction contracts have been awarded and the construction activities have

commenced. The work is progressing at a brisk pace on both the corridors.

On East-West corridor, the viaduct construction works of around 6.5 km stretch of Priority
Reach has been completed. Moreover, the works of 6(six) priority reach stations are at
advanced stage of completion. Track and traction related works is in progress. The Apparel
Park depot work is on the verge of completion. In the Western Reach, more than 2 km of
viaduct has been completed and another 2 km is at advanced stage where launching work is in
progress. A bridge is being constructed parallel to Gandhi Bridge from where elevated viaduct

will go underground near Shahpur after crossing the Sabarmati River. On the North-South
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Corridor, work has started from both ends and viaduct has been completed in nearly 5 km

stretch. The RCC works of three stations is also at an advanced stage.

It is heartening to share that the work of underground section of 6.5 Kms on east-west corridor
from ‘Apparel Park to Shahpur’ have commenced. Three Tunnel Boring Machines (TBM) have
so far mined nearly 0.6 km of tunnel. Utmost care is being exercised by your company during

underground tunneling works in the old city area.

I am glad to share that, with the continuous support of the State Government and Ahmedabad
Municipal Corporation (AMC), out of the total land required for the Project, 100% government
land and 67% private land has been acquired by the Company. Utilities shifting and
Rehabilitation & Resettlement (R&R) activities are parallely pursued in consultation with AMC,
Torrent Power and other agencies for timely availability of Right of way (ROW) for construction

activities.

The efforts made in implementation of the project are yielding the results and project is
progressing for a timely implementation. | am sure upon completion of the Project there will be
considerable reduction in vehicular traffic congestion as well as pollution in Ahmedabad.
Moreover people of Ahmedabad will also experience fast, comfortable, safe, reliable and

economic mode of world class public transportation system.

| take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to Government of India and Government
of Gujarat, my colleagues on the Board, shareholders, stakeholders, employees, contractors,
and consultants for their valuable contribution and unstinted support extended to this project

over a period of time.

The trust that you have placed in the Management of your company is an invaluable source of
support. Let me once again assure you, we will continue to stay focused in building a world
class rail based mass rapid transport system in Ahmedabad City.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/-
(Durga Shanker Mishra)
Chairman
DIN 02944212

Date: 12" September, 2018
Place: New Delhi

(This does not purport to be proceedings of the 8" Annual General Meeting of the Company)
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF METRO LINK EXPRESS FOR GANDHINAGAR AND
AHMEDABAD (MEGA) COMPANY LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, THE 14t
DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2018 AT 04.30 P.M AT CONFERENCE ROOM NO. 123-C
MINISTRY OF HOUSING AND URBAN AFFAIRS (MOHUA), GOVERNMENT OF INDIA,
NIRMAN BHAWAN, MAULANA AZAD ROAD, NEW DELHI -110011

TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

01. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2018 and Reports of the Board and the
Independent Auditors thereon and Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India.

“RESOLVED THAT, the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018 along with, Independent Auditors report
and Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India report and the
Board’s Report, for the financial year 2017-18 thereon as placed before the
meeting be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

02. To consider the appointment & fixing of remuneration of Independent Auditor
for F.Y. 2018-109.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,141,142, 144 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the underlying
rules viz. Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s Manubhai & Shah LLP.,
Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad(FRN No.W106041/W100136), appointed as
Independent Auditors of the Company, by the office of Comptroller and Auditor
General of India for the F.Y. 2018-19 vide letter no CA.V/COY/GUJARAT, GUIMET
(1)/853 dated 28/08/2018 and a written certificate in respect to the same, having been
received from the said Auditor, be and is hereby appointed as the Independent
Auditors of the Company under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the F.Y.
2018-19 to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company on a remuneration as may be decided
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by the Board of Directors or any committee thereof and agreed upon by M/s.
Manubhai & Shah LLP.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and
Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited.

Sd/-
Hitesh Bhamare
Company Secretary

Date: 07/09/2018
Place: Gandhinagar

Notes:

1. A member entitled to vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy in
his/her place who need not be a member of the Company.
2. Proxy Form duly filled in must be lodged with the Company at its registered

office at least 48 hours before the date of the meeting.

To:

All Members of MEGA Company Limited
Directors of MEGA Company Limited
Statutory Auditors

Internal Auditors

Secretarial Auditors

Sl .
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Form No. MGT - 11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s):

Registered Address :

Email ID :

Folio No / Client ID

DP ID:

(N.A. for held in physical Mode)

[ / We, being the Member(s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint

Name Address E-mail ID Signature

Or failing him

Name Address E-mail ID Signature

As my / our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me / us and on my/our behalf at
the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 14t
September, 2018 at 04:30 PM at Conference Room No. 123-C Ministry of Housing
and Urban Affairs (MoHUA), Government of India, Nirman Bhawan, Maulana Azad
Road, New Delhi - 110011and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as given in the notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company.

day of September, 2018

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy Holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

This attendance slip duly filled in is to be handed over at the entrance of the meeting
venue.

Regd. Folio No.

No. of shares held

Full Name of the member attending:

Full name of the first joint-holder:
(To be filled in if first named joint-holder does not attend the meeting.)

Name of Proxy:
(To be filled in if Proxy Form has been duly deposited with the Company.)

[ hereby record my presence at 8th Annual General Meeting being held at
“CONFERENCE ROOM NO. 123-C MINISTRY OF HOUSING AND URBAN AFFAIRS (MOHUA),
GOVERNMENT OF INDIA, NIRMAN BHAWAN, MAULANA AZAD ROAD, NEW DELHI -
110011” on Friday, 14th September, 2018 at 04.30 PM.

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature
(To be signed at the time of handing over of this slip)

NOTE: Persons attending the 8% Annual General Meeting are requested to bring
their copies of Annual Report.
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FORM NO. 22-A
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Consent of Shareholder for shorter notice
[Pursuant to section 101(1)]

To,

The Board of Directors,

Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and
Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited
Block No.1, First Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan,

Sector 10/A,Gandhinagar,

Gujarat-382010.

I, son / daughter of

resident of holding

Equity Share(s) of Rs.10/- each in the Company in my own name/joint

name, hereby give consent, pursuant to section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, to hold

the Annual General General Meeting on 14th September 2018 at a shorter notice.

Signature:
Name:

(In Block Letters)

Date:
Place:
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Date: 14/09/2018
Time of Annual General Meeting: 04.30.PM
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BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 8" Annual Report on
performance of Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA)
Company Limited (50:50 SPV of Government of India & Government of Gujarat)
together with the Audited Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for the year ended
on 31% March, 2018.

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The project is in the pre-operative / construction stage. Your Company has made
substantial progress towards the effective implementation of the Project. The following
are the key financial highlights for the year under review:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As per Ind. AS
2017-18 2016-17
Gross Income / Turnover 1700.17 3134.85

Profit ./' (Loss) Before Interest and (10,140.19) | 3132.72
Depreciation

Less: Tax Expense 307.83 963.77
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (10,448.02) | 2168.95
Add:_ Balance brought forward from the 3804.62 1635.67
previous year
Balance Profit / (Loss) C/F to the next year (6,643.40) 3804.62

Additional Financial Information
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As per Ind. AS
2017-18 2016-17
Capital Work in Progress 207745.54 | 123481.28
Other Fixed Asset 33892.94 27346.54
Intangible Assets 41944.92 | 43384.50

Indian Accounting Standards

The Company has successfully transitioned to IND AS regime and has prepared the
Financial Statements for the year as per IND AS.

DIVIDEND

The Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase - | is in a pre-operative / construction stage
and no operational profits were earned during the year. Hence, your Board of Directors
is not recommending any dividend for the year ended 31° March, 2018.

11
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AHMEDABAD METRO RAIL PROJECT PHASE-1

PROJECT OVERVIEW

MEGA Company Limited is committed for providing a world class Metro-rail services in
and around the Ahmedabad City, and in consonance to its commitment; MEGA has
initiated the work for implementation of ‘Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-1’
(hereinafter referred as ‘the Project’) under the aegis of State Government and Central
Government.

The Government of India has approved implementation of the Ahmedabad Metro Rail
Project Phase-1 through MEGA Company Limited as a 50:50 basis jointly owned
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) of Government of India (Gol) and Government of
Gujarat (GoG).

Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase -1 will have Metro Rail network for the following
routes:

Corridor Elevated Underground Total Route length | Completion
(Route Length (Route Length Kms. Cost (Rs.
kms) kms) Crore)

East West Corridor 14.63 6.5 21.16 4030.00

(Thaltej Gam —

Vastral Gam)

North South 18.87 0.00 18.87 6743.00

Corridor (APMC —

Motera Stadium)

Total 33.5 6.5 40.03 10773.00

- The Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-1 will cover a total distance of 40.03 kms *
along both the corridors at a completion cost of Rs. 10,773 crores °.

! The total distance mentioned above has increased by 2.2 kms from the sanctioned DPR, due to shifting of existing N-S corridor
to the eastern side of Sabarmati — Botad Railway Line as per GoG GR dated 30/12/2014.

’ The estimated completion cost may increase by approx Rs.1000 Crores due to modification in alignment on N-S corridor.

12
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B. GLIMPSES OF PROGRESS ON GROUND

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS

e All civil construction contracts have been awarded. The civil construction works
have commenced and work is progressing at a brisk pace on both the corridors.

e Priority Reach viaduct construction has been completed. Track and traction related
works are going on. 6(six) stations of priority reach are at advanced stage of
completion. At Apparel Park depot, work is nearly completed.

¢ In the Western Reach, more than 2 km of viaduct has been completed and another
2 km is at advanced stage where launching work is in progress. A bridge is being
constructed parallel to Gandhi Bridge from where elevated viaduct will go
underground near Shahpur after crossing the river. Three TBMs(Tunnel Boring
Machines) have so far mined nearly 0.6 km of tunnel.

e On the North-South Corridor, work has started from both ends and viaduct has
been completed in nearly 5 km stretch. The RCC works of three stations is also at
an advanced stage.

CORRIDOR WISE PROGRESS

i. East-West Corridor (From Vastral Gam to Thaltej Gam)

Viaduct Work

1. Viaduct Progress from Vastral Gam to Apparel Park

The East West Corridor route from Vastral Gam to Apparel Park is identified as
Priority Reach. As on date, construction of 100 % Pile, 100 % Pile Cap,100 % Piers ,
100 % Pier Cap, 100 % portal pier, 100 % portal beam, 100 % segments and 100 %
spans erecting completed on Reach 1 of East —~West Corridor.

Fig. 1 Viaduct work from Vastral Gam to Apparel Park

13
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Fig. 2 Track laying work from Vastral Gam to Apparel Park

2. Viaduct Progress from Thaltej to Stadium Reach 2,

The company has awarded a contract for the Construction of Elevated Viaduct from
Thalte] Gam to End of Western Ramp (ch -710 to + 7503) in E-W Corridor R2 including
Bridge over Sabarmati river and 7 Stations Thaltej Gam, Thaltej, Doordarshan Kendra,
Gurukul, Gujarat University, Commerce Six Road and Stadium Circle and excluding
Interchange Old High Court Station on 25" January 2017 and construction work has
been started. As on date, construction of 58 % Pile, 55 % Pile Cap,47.5 % Piers, 36.5 %
Pier Cap, 14 % Parapet Casting, 32 % segment casting and 12 % spans erecting
completed for viaduct work.

As on date, construction of 69 % Pile, 58 % Pile Cap,54 % Piers work has been
completed for Station work.

v

Fig. 3 Viaduct work - Thaltej to Stadium

14
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Fig. 5 Doordarshan Kendra Station

3. Under Ground Works From Apparel Park to Shahpur

The company has awarded two contracts for the Underground Construction work.

Apparel Park to Kalupur

- The company has awarded contract for Design and Construction of Underground
Stations and Tunnel including Finishes and excluding PHE, Electrical and HVAC from

15
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Kalupur to Apparel Park on 2nd March 2017. As on date approx. 300 m (TBM-1) and
103 m (TBM-2) tunneling works has been completed.

Fig. 7 TBM West bound Tunneling Work

Kalupur to Shahpur

- The company has awarded first contract for Design and Construction of Underground
Stations and Tunnel including Finishes and excluding PHE, Electrical and HVAC from
Kalupur to Shahpur on 25th January 2017. As on date approx. 110 m tunneling work

16
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for TBM 1 has been completed. TBM 2 has been launched at kalupur and tunneling
work have commenced.

Fig. 8 Tunneling Work from Kalupur launching shaft to Gheekanta

4. Station construction work (Vastral Gam to Apparel Park Station)

The company has awarded a contract for construction of Six Elevated Metro
Stations including the viaduct portion and transition spans on either sides of the
stations (Vastral Gam, Nirant Cross Roads, Vastral, Rabari Colony, Amraiwadi and
Apparel Park) on Reach-1 of East-West Corridor.

- As on date, the construction progresses of the stations are as given below:

- Roofing and flooring work on Vastral Gam and Apparel Park Station is going on.

- Slab Casting work at Platform level is going on at Amraiwadi station, Nirant
Station.
Pier Arm work is going on at Vastral station and Rabari Colony Station.

17
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Fig. 10 Apparel Park Station
5. Apparel Park Depot work

17 Hectares of land for Apparel Park depot is allotted by GIDC to the Company and
the possession was taken by MEGA on 21% October, 2015. The work started on 09"
February 2016. The various activities i.e. construction of Embankment, excavation of

Foundation , PCC, reinforcement work and construction work of Stabling Shed,
Repair bay, RSS building, Admin Building is in full swing.
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Fig. 11 Apparel Park Depot
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ii . North — South Corridor (From APMC to Motera)

Viaduct Work

1. Ranip to Motera, Package 4A

The company has awarded a contract for Construction of Elevated viaduct from Ranip
to Motera (package 4A) on 12" January 2016. As on date, construction of 62 % Pile,
57.47 % Pile cap, 55.17 % Pier, 61.9 % pier cap, 59.48 % segment casting and 41.96 %
span erection work has been completed on package 4A of NS Corridor.

B TR

Fig. 12 Viaduct construction work Ranip to Motera

2. APMC to Shreyas, Package 1

The company has awarded a contract for the Construction of Elevated viaduct and
Station from APMC to Shreyas (Package 1). As on date, construction of 93 % Pile, 92.1
% pile cap, 85.3 % Pier, 82.8 % pier Cap, 75.4 % segment casting work and 58.6 %
segment launching work has been completed on package 1 of NS Corridor.

Fig 13 Viaduct construction work APMC to Shreyas
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3. Viaduct Progress from Shreyas to Ranip, Package 2

The company has awarded a contract for the Construction of Elevated viaduct and
Station from Shreyas to Ranip (package 2) on 31™ December 2016. As on date,
construction of 64.6 % Pile, 36.9 % Pile cap, 23 % Pier, 15.9 % pier cap, 17.7 %
segment and 5.3 % span erection work has been completed on package 2 of NS
Corridor.

Fig. 14 Viaduct Construction work Shreyas to Ranip

Station Progress

4. APMC to Shreyas, Package 1

The company has awarded a contract for construction of 4(four) elevated Metro Stations
including the viaduct portion and transition spans on either sides of the stations (APMC,
Jivraj, Rajivhagar and Shreyas) on Reach-1 of NS Corridor. As on date, construction of
100 % Pile, 100 % Pile cap and 90.91 % pier at Concourse level, 72.5 % pier at
Platform 77.5 % Pier Arm at Concourse level, 72.5 % pier arm at Platform level, 30.6 %
Slab concourse level and 16.7 % Slab Platform level work has been completed on
package 1 of NS Corridor.

Fig. 15 APMC Station
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5. Station Progress from Shreyas to Ranip , Package 2

The company has awarded a contract for the Construction of Elevated viaduct and
Station from Shreyas to Ranip (package 2) on 31™ December 2016. As on date,
construction of 77.82 % Pile, 34.34 % Pile cap and 28.88 % Pier work has been
completed for station work on package 2 of NS Corridor.

Fig. 16 Vijaynagar Station
6. Ranip to Motera (Station only), Package 4B

The company has awarded a contract for construction of Five (5) Numbers Including
Viaduct Portion Within the Stations and Transition Spans On Either Side of the Stations
(Motera, Sabarmati, AEC, Sabarmati Railway Station and Ranip) for Pkg- 4B of East-
West Corridor on 6th FEB, 2017. As on date, construction of 68.9 % Pile, 40 % Pile cap
and 40 % pier at Concourse level, 22 % pier at Platform, 24 % Pier Arm at Concourse
level work has been completed on package 4-B of NS Corridor.

Fig. 17 AEC Station
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7. Gyaspur Depot

The possession of 20 hectares of land for Gyaspur Depot has been taken by MEGA.
The work for construction of boundary wall, earth work and land/area grading works has
been awarded on 4" June, 2015. The work for construction of Gyaspur depot has been
awarded. The various activities i.e. construction of Embankment ,excavation of
Foundation , PCC, reinforcement work and construction work of Stabling Shed, Repair
bay, RSS building, Admin Building is in full swing.

STABLING SHED INSPECTION BAY

ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING DCC BCC BUILDING

Fig. 18 Gyaspur Depot
8. Other System works Contracts:

The company has awarded contract for Signaling & Train control system on 8-03-2017,
10600 MT HH rail on 15-05-2017, supply of turn outs on 12-05-2017, 3500 MT HH rall
on 24-01-2017, Track Execution tender on 28-06-2017, Power Supply & Traction on 10-

22



n— ANNUAL REPORT
" METRO LINK EXPRESS FOR GANDHINAGAR AND AHMEDABAD (MEGA) COMPANY LIMITED  [(A0K MRS

10-2017, Telecommunication system on 13-10-2017, PSD on 18-05-2018 and AFC on
28-02-2018 and Lifts & Escalators on 19-06-2018. Work is going on in full swing.

FINANCIAL PROGRESS

JICA Loan:

As per approved financing plan, the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) has
sanctioned ODA loan of Rs. 5968 crore (1,12,816 million JPY) to be disbursed in two
tranches. In first tranche the loan amounting to 82434 million JPY i.e. Rs. 4361 crore
approx.(as per the exchange rate dated 27/7/2015) would be disbursed. Out of 82434
million JPY 10872.60 million (575.27 cr) have been disbursed till now.

Sub-ordinate Debt:

As per Project Sanction letter, the Government of India and Government of Gujarat shall
provide sub-ordinate debt to the Company towards the central and state taxes. State
will also give subordinate for land.

During the year under review, sub-ordinate debt released by Government of India and
Government of Gujarat is as under:

Government of India Sub-ordinate Debt for
Rs. 118.81 Crores
Central Taxes

Government of Gujarat Additional
Subordinate Debt

Rs. 155 Crores

TOTAL Rs. 273.81 Crores

Up to 31% August 2018, Financial Progress of Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project is INR
3891 cr. (Provisional) (i.e. 36.11%).

Operation & Maintenance Recruitment

During the year under review your company undertook recruitment of 606 non-executive
posts comprising of Maintainer, Junior Engineer (JE), Customer Relationship Assistants
(CRA), Station Controller / Train Operator (SC/TO) for Operation and Maintenance
department through online application process, commenced on 30" March, 2017 and
closed on 30th April, 2017. Through IBPS (Institute of Banking Personnel Selection)
online exams were held in July-2017 at various centers across the country. Total 41390
candidates appeared for online examination at various centers.
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After various stages of recruitment & selection process, the company found 675
candidates fit for various posts in O&M department. Out of total fit candidates the
company has selected 127 candidates on merit basis as first batch of Operation and
Maintenance for joining. At present the first batch of O & M personnel undergoing
training at BMRCTI (Bangalore Metro Rail Training Institute), Bangalore.

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING

Company has implemented SAP Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to
integrate various applications to manage the business and automate many back office
functions. It subsumes core business processes of the Company into one single
application, eliminating avoidable costs and redundancies.

In SAP various areas of business operations of your company are seamlessly
integrated into the single ERP system. It is capable to handle the procurement to
payment process, from services received from contractors through final invoice receipt
and verification. The Financial Accounting & Controlling Module has the capability of
meeting all the accounting and financial needs of an organization.

SAP has been implemented in your company for finance, material management, human
resource management, payroll, performance management and project systems.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was
Rs.4000 Crores.

During the year, the paid up share capital of the Company has been increased from
Rs.1551.21 Crore to Rs.1851.21 Crore on account of contribution of additional equity by
the Government of India.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company’s internal control system comprises of audit and compliance by in-house
team from Finance & Accounts department supplemented by independent internal audit
checks from M/s. R.S. Patel & Company, Chartered Accountants for F.Y. 2017-18. The
internal auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls through 100%
pre-audit process. Independence of the audit and compliance is ensured by the direct
reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board.
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VI. RISK MANAGEMENT / FRAUD PREVENTION

MEGA Project is in preoperative stage. Various risks are dealt proactively and proper
mitigating measures are adopted by the management from time to time. An effective
risk management mechanism is in place to gauge the overall risk climate of the
organization and management regularly evaluates the risk profile of the company and
suggests measures for risk mitigation and management.

As far as risk to assets and certain liabilities are concerned, these are mitigated by
obtaining insurance cover for adequate value for the assets from Insurance Company.
As regards financial risks, adequate internal control measures are adopted by the
Company by engaging the external firm of Chartered Accountants as internal auditors
on concurrent basis apart from regular audit by Statutory Auditors as well as C&AG of
India from time to time. In order to implement internal financial control, all the invoices
are pre-audited by the team of internal auditor and cleared after their authorization.

VIl. GENERAL INFORMATION

ORGANIZATIONAL SET-UP

As you are aware your Company is a 50:50 basis jointly owned Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) of Government of India and Government of Gujarat.

Government of India and Government of Gujarat appoint Five (5) Directors each with
Secretary, Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs (MoHUA), Government of India
appointed as Chairman of the Company. The Managing Director is the nominee of
Government of Gujarat with prior concurrence of Government of India and appointed by
the Board of Directors. Managing Director is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and assisted by Functional Directors, Chief Financial Officer, General Managers,
Company Secretary and other officers on deputation / contract basis.

The tasks are periodically monitored by the Managing Director and the Functional
Director(s) assisted by a team of competent and dedicated officers drawn from the
Central and State Government. Progress made in implementation of the project is
reported to the Board of Directors from time to time and corrective steps are taken
wherever necessary.

VIIl. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The Board of Directors of MEGA is comprised of thirteen (13) Directors out of maximum fifteen
(15) as provided in the Articles of Association of the Company.
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The following changes among the Directors took place during the year under review:

Government of India Nominee Directors

- Shri Rajiv Gauba, IAS Ex-officio Chairman, MEGA Company Limited & Secretary —
Ministry of Urban Development, Government of India ceased to be the Director of
the Company with effect from 30/06/2017, pursuant to his transfer in the Ministry of
Home Affairs, Government of India.

- Shri Durga Shanker Mishra, IAS took over as Ex-officio Chairman, MEGA
Company Limited & Secretary — Ministry of Urban Development, Government of
India has joined the Board with effect from 30/06/2017 vice Shri Rajiv Gauba, IAS.

- Shri Sanjay Kumar Garg, Chief Project Manager, Ahmedabad, Western Railway,
has joined the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from 23/09/2017 as a
Nominee Director of Government of India, vice Shri Shailendra Singh.

Government of Gujarat Nominee Directors

- Shri Punamchand Parmar, IAS — Additional Chief Secretary, Urban Development &
Urban Housing Department, and Government of Gujarat has resigned from of the
directorship of Company with effect from 16/06/2017 pursuant to his transfer in the
Health & Family Welfare Deparment (Medical Services & Medical Education),
Government of Gujarat.

- Shri Mukesh Puri, IAS, Principal Secretary, Urban Development & Urban Housing
Department, Government of Gujarat has joined the Board of Directors with effect
from 18/07/2017 as a Nominee Director of Government of Gujarat.

- Pursuant to the GR No MGA-122013-2642-Dh dated 09.02.2018, the tenure of
Dr. I. P. Gautam, IAS(Retd) as a Managing Director of the Company till October,
2020.

- Shri Anil Mukim, IAS - Additional Chief Secretary, Finance Department,
Government of Gujarat has resigned from of the directorship of Company with
effect from 07/03/2018 pursuant to his transfer to New Delhi vide DOPT order
N0.36/01/2018-EO(SM-I) dated 28.02.2018.

The Board welcomes the new Directors and places on record its deep sense of

appreciation for the valuable contribution made by all the outgoing Directors during
their tenure on the Board of the Company.

26



n— ANNUAL REPORT
" METRO LINK EXPRESS FOR GANDHINAGAR AND AHMEDABAD (MEGA) COMPANY LIMITED  [(A0K MRS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company are —

MANAGING DIRECTOR

- Dr. I. P. Gautam, IAS (Retd)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

- Shri Shabbir Saifuddin Sabuwala

COMPANY SECRETARY

- Shri Hiteshkumar Bhamare (w.e.f. 06.01.2018)
- Shri Navin Varma (up to 30.11.2017)

The following changes among the Directors took place during the current
financial year i.e 2018-19 (updated up to the date of Annual General Meeting)

- Shri Arvind Agrawal, IAS, Additional Chief Secretary, Finance Department,
Government of Gujarat has joined the Board of Directors with effect from 07/05/2018

as a Nominee Director of Government of Gujarat vice Shri Anil Mukim, IAS.

Functional Director

- Shri Prashant Rao, has been appointed as a Whole Time Director (Systems,
Electrical and Rolling Stock) on the Board of Directors of the Company with effect
from 18/05/2018.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The Company has at present a Woman
Director on the Board in compliance of the requirements of Section 149(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide the notification no. G.S.R. 839(E) dated 5™ July, 2017
have notified the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Amendment
Rules, 2017, wherein Unlisted Public Companies in the nature of ‘Joint Venture' are
exempted from the requirements of compliances as provided in section 149(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013. In view of the aforementioned notification your company is
exempted from the requirement of appointment of Independent Directors on the Board
of Directors.
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XI.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the financial year from 1 April, 2017 to
31% March, 2018. The dates on which the meetings were held are — 24™ July 2017,
239 September 2017, 06" January 2018 and 9™ February, 2018 during the period under
review.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The following Committees were constituted by the Board of Directors’:

Committee Members as on Members as on date of
31/03/2018 Report

Audit Committee | Shri. Anil Mukim, IAS Shri. Arvind Agarwal, IAS | Chairman
Shri Mukund Kumar | Shri  Mukund  Kumar | Member

Sinha Sinha
Shri  Sanjay Kumar | Shri Sanjay Kumar Garg | Member
Garg
Shri Ashwini  Kumar, | Shri Ashwini Kumar, IAS | Member
IAS
Project Dr. I.LP. Gautam, IAS|Dr. |P. Gautam, IAS | Chairperson
Committee (Retd.) (Retd.)

Shri. Anil Mukim, 1AS Shri. Arvind Agarwal, IAS | Member
Shri  Ashwini  Kumar, | Shri Ashwini Kumar, IAS | Member

IAS
Shri Rajeev N Dwivedi Shri Rajeev N Dwivedi Member
Shri S. S. Rathod Shri S. S. Rathod Chairperson
Nomination and Dr. I.LP. Gautam, IAS|Dr. |LP. Gautam, IAS | Member
: (Retd.) (Retd.)
Remuneration

Shri Rajeev N Dwivedi | Shri Rajeev N Dwivedi Member

Committee _ — _ Al
Shri  Ashwini  Kumar, | Shri Ashwini Kumar, IAS | Member
IAS
Corporate Social Chairman
Responsibility This committee is under reconstitution Member
(CSR) Member
Committee Member

MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors have
constituted an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee presently comprises of total four
nominee Directors of Government of India and Government of Gujarat namely. Shri
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Arvind Agarwal, IAS, Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha, Shri Sanjay Kumar Garg and Shri
Ashwini Kumar, IAS as members

During the period under review, two (2) meeting of the Audit Committee were duly held
on 18 July, 2017 and 04 January, 2018. There were no instances of any
recommendations of the Audit Committee which have not been accepted by the Board.

XIl.  MEETINGS OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors have
constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee presently comprises of total four nominee Directors of
Government of India and Government of Gujarat namely. Shri S. S.Rathod, Dr. | P
Gautam, IAS(Retd), Shri Rajeev N Dwivedi and Shri Ashwini Kumar, IAS as members.

During the period under review, one (1) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was held on 12" October, 2017,

XIll.  COMMITTEES FORMED BY STATE GOVERNMENT

The following Committees have been constituted by the State Government for
Ahmedabad- Gandhinagar Metro Rail Project:

(a) High Power Committee under the Chairmanship of the Hon’ble Deputy Chief
Minister, Government of Gujarat. (Reconstituted vide order no.
Project/102011/S.F.22 /DHA dated 25-04-2017).

(b) High Power Committee under the Chairmanship of Chief Secretary, Government
of Gujarat. (Constituted pursuant to clause 6(ii) of the Project Sanction Letter
dated 17.11.2014).

XIV. MEETING OF THE HIGH POWER COMMITTEES

The High Power Committee (HPC) under the Chairmanship of the Hon’ble Dy. Chief
Minister, Government of Gujarat has met during the year under review on 3 July, 2017
and has given various decisions / directions for smooth and speedy implementation of
Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-1.

The High Power Committee under the chairmanship of Chief Secretary, Government of

Gujarat has met during the year under review during the year on 7" November, 2017 &
6th March, 2018 respectively.
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XV. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

(@) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended 31%
March, 2018, the applicable accounting standards, read with the requirements
set out under schedule 1l to ‘the Act’ have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the
year,

(c) That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) That the directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ending
31° March, 2018, on a going concern basis;

(e) That the directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

XVI. AUDITORS

A. Statutory Auditors

Your Company being a Government Company, the Statutory Auditors are appointed by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as per the provisions of Section 139(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, M/s Manubhai & Shah LLP (FRN:
No.W106041/W100136), Chartered Accountants, having their office at Ahmedabad
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2017-18.
The Independent Auditors’ Report on the accounts of the company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018 is placed in the Board Report of the Company.

Further a report from the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG)
on the financial statements of the Company with NIL comments is received vide their
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Letter No. ES-I/A/csIMEGA/2017-18/OW 598 dated 06.09.2018 under Section 143(6)
(b) of the Companies Act, 2013. Copy of the report is annexed herewith as. Annex-1.

B. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed M/s. Hitesh Buch & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, Ahmedabad (CP No0.8195) to undertake the secretarial audit of the
Company. The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor for the
financial year 2017-18 is placed at Annex-2 of this report.

C. Internal Auditor

M/s. R. S. Patel & Company, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad were appointed as
Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 to conduct the internal
audit. The scope of the internal audit and the reports of the auditors were reviewed by
the Audit Committee from time to time.

XVII.  EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return is attached
herewith as Annexure - 3.

XVIIl.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the requirements of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of
Directors has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

Your Company has not earned operational profit in the preceding years. Considering
the company being in a preoperative stage your management has not spent any
amount on account of Corporate Social Responsibility for the period under review.

XIX. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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XX.

XXI.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE:

The particulars as required under section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as below:-

1. Conservation of enerqy-

The Company has not undertaken any activity wherein any specific measures of
conservation of energy, technology absorption are involved. Hence the particulars
are not applicable for the period under review. However, the planning of
Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project is being done taking into account various aspects of
energy conservation.

2. Technology Absorption

The Ahmedabad Metro-Rail Project Phase-1 is in a pre-operative / construction
stage and there was no technology absorption during the period under review.

3. Foreign Exchange earnings or outgo in Foreign Exchange during the period:

The particulars relating to Foreign Exchange Earnings or out go in foreign exchange
incurred during the period are as under:

i) There were no foreign exchange earnings (inflows) during the period.

i) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On Accrual basis)

Particulars 2017-18 (Rs.in | 2016-17 (Rs.
Lacs) in Lacs)
(a) Technical Advisory 21400.53 1887.24
Services
(b) Travelling Expenses 8.01 5.94
TOTAL 21408.54 1893.18

DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134 (3) (I) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there have been no material changes and

commitments which can affect the financial position of the Company between the end of
the financial year of the Company and date of this report.
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XXIl.  DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Directors further states that, during the year under review, there were no cases
reported pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

XX, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors place on records its gratitude for the valuable co-operation, advice and
support received from the various Ministries of Government of India especially the
Ministry of Urban Development, Ministry of Railways and the various Ministries /
Departments of Government of Gujarat including the Urban Development and Urban
Housing Department, Finance Department etc, the Multi-lateral lending agencies viz.
JICA & other Financial Institutions & Commercial Banks and Ahmedabad Municipal
Corporation.

Your Directors wish to acknowledge their deep sense of appreciation and sincere
thanks to all Government Agencies, Departments, Bankers, Comptroller & Auditor
General of India, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and each
and every stakeholder for their wholehearted and continued support, guidance, advice,
assistance and co-operation from time to time during the year and hope to receive the
same kind of co-operation in the future as well.

Your Directors thank Company’s Consultants, Advisors, Contractors for their valuable
advice and guidance and all others who are associated with the implementation of the
Project.

Your Board of Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the
valuable services, advise, Co-operation and support given by Members of the Board
during their respective tenure as Directors.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the co-operation extended by all
the Officers and Employees of the Company in the progress of the project and for the
smooth conduct of the operations by the Company during the Year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Metro-Link  Express for Gandhinagar and
Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited.

Sd/- Sd/-
DR. I.P. GAUTAM S. S. RATHORE
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- Sd/-
HITESH BHAMARE S. S. SABUWALA
COMPANY SECRETARY C.F.O

DATE: 14.09.2018
PLACE: New Delhi
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Annex-1
REPORT OF THE C&AG
Confidential
By Regd. Post &t
WU HETCTETERT (3. UH WA, ), T

Office of the
Principal Accountant General (E&RSA), Gujarat

e GA Co. Led.
KARM\’JEIiHﬂAH,G'MG R
NWARD NG : :

No. ES-1/A/cs/MEGA/2017-18 /0" 578
33 o€ 09 20/

To
The Managing Director,

Metro Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited,
Block - 1, 15t Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,

Sector-10/A, Gandhinagar-382010.

Sub:- Comment of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of
Dholera International Airport Company Limited for the year ended 31
March 2018.

Sir,

Please find enclosed nil comment certificate of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the
financial statements of Metro Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad(MEGA)
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018 for being placed before the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 the comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India are required to be sent by the Company to
every person entitled to copies of audited financial statements under Section 136(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and also to be placed before the Annual General Meeting
of the Company at the same time and in the same manner as the Statutory Auditors'
Report of the Company. The date of placing the Report of the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India before the Annual General Meeting may please be intimated
to this office.

Six copies of the printed accounts may please be sent to this office for our use
and record.

Receipt of this letter with its enclosures may please be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

LL»{«LLLLJ

Sr. Dy. Accountant General (ES-I)
Encl: As above

HGIILTe o, FAIGY, SEHErEE - 380 009. Audit Bhavan, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009.
I / Phone : 079-26403713, 26561327, 26405874, 26561282, 26560892
%9 / Fax : 079-26561853 E-mail : agaugujarat] @cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF METRO LINK EXPRESS FOR GANDHINAGAR
AND AHMEDABAD (MEGA) COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018

The preparation of financial statements of the Metro Link Express for
Gandhinagar and Ahmedaba (MEGA) Company Limited for the year ended 31
March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 23 July 2018.

[, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under Section 143 (6) (a) of the Act of the financial
statements of Metro Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA)
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018. This supplementary audit
has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the
Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors
and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting
records. On the basis of my audit, nothing significant has come to my knowiedge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory
Auditors’ Report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

. ela)®
(H. K. Dharmadarshi)
Principal Accountant General (E&RSA), Gujarat

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: U 5 SEP 2~mB
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Annex-2
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS REPORT

I}s HITESH BUCH“ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014]

To,

The Members,

Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited
Registered Office

Block No. 1, First Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan. Sector 10-A,

Gandhinagar-382010

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and
Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited (CIN-U60200GJ2010SGC059407) (hereinafter
called “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2018 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 317" March 2018
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and the Rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA") and the rules made
thereunder; - Not Applicable

(i11) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder: - Not Applicable
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: - Not Applicable
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act™) were not applicable to the
company during the vear under review:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011:

(b) The.Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulation 1992;

(c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Cmployee Stock Option Scheme

—1-

310, Aditya Plaza, Nr. Karnavati Apartments. Jodhpur, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015.
Phone : 079-40321260 Mobile : 098254 43440 E-mail : pcs.buchassociates @ gmail.com / hiteshbuch @ yanoo co.in
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and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines. 1999 and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations.
2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an lIssue and Share
Transfer Agent) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulation, 2009;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;

(vi)  As informed to us. the following other laws are specifically applicable to the
Company:
1. The Sexual Harassment of Women at work place Act, 2013;

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and The Environmental

(Protection) Rules, 1986 as amended;

The Indian Railway Act, 1989;

The Metro Railway (Construction of Works) Act. 1978

The Metro Railway (Operation and Maintenance) Act. 2002.

2

L

o

I

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

lad
B

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, and Non-Executive Directors, The changes in the composition of
the Board of Dircctors that took place during the period under review were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to all directors
to schedule the Board Mecetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. All the decisions were carried out
unanimously and were recorded as part of the minutes.

4. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

5 We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events /
actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws except those which are reported in the annual report.

e
ace: Ahmedabad AE( & o Hitesh Buch
Date: ) W (& For, Hitesh Buch & Associates
Yleq|rets A FCS No.: 3145
y C P No.: 8195

—-2__.—
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To,

The Members.

Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited
Registered Office

Block No. 1. First Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector 10-A,

Gandhinagar-382010

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

1~

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that cormrect facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of [inancial records and Books ol
Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Place: Ahmedabad f"” ﬁs Hitesh Buch
Date: |Lfo9)201¢ ) For. Hitesh Buch & Associates
2 FCS No.: 3145

\queun‘v' C P No.: 8195
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Annex-3
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN U60200G]J2010SGC059407
Registration Date 04/02/2010

3.| Name of the Company METRO-LINK EXPRESS FOR GANDHINAGAR AND
AHMEDABAD (MEGA) COMPANY LIMITED

4.| Category/Sub-category

of the Company METRO RAILWAY TRANSPORT SERVICES
5.| Address of the
Registered office & BLOCK NO.1, FIRST FLOOR, KARMAYOGI BHAVAN, BEHIND
contact details NIRMAN BHAVAN, SECTOR-10-A, GANDHINAGAR- 382010
6.| Whether listed company | NO
7.| Name, Address & NOT APPLICABLE

contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing
10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company

1 Urban & suburban Metro 99641112 100
Railway Transport Services

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

S.NO. NAME AND CIN/GLN | HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY | % of Shares | Applicable
ADDRESS OF /ASSOCIATE Held Section
THE COMPANY

1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the % Change
Shareholders the year[As on 31-March-2017] year[As on 31-March-2018] during

Dem | Physical | Total % of |Demat | Physical | Total % of the year

at Total Total

Shares Shares
A.Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/
HUF ) ’ ) ) ) ) ) ) ’
b) Central Govt /
President of i 45.121 45.121 29.09 i 75.121 75.121 40.58% 11.49%
Crore Crore % Crore Crore
India
i 110 110 70.91 i 110 110 o i o
c) State Govt(s) Crore Crore % Crore Crore 59.42% | (-11.49%)
d) Bodies Corp. . . - - - - . . -
e) Banks / FI . - - - - - - - -
f) Any other . - - - - - - - -
Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) 155.121 | 155.121 185.121 | 185.121
- Crore Crore 100% - Crore Crore 100% -

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture

Capital Funds

f) Insurance

Companies
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g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign
Nationals

Clearing
Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies -
DR

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Grand Total 155.121 | 155.121 185.121 | 185.121
(A+B+(C) - Crore Crore 100% | - Crore Crore 100% -
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters-
SN Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change
Name in .
shareholdi
No. of Shares % of total | % of Shares No. of Shares % of total %of Shares | ng during
Shares of | Pledged / Shares of the | Pledged / the year
the encumbered to company encumbere
company | total shares d to total
shares
1 Government of
Gujarat 110,00,00,000 70.91% Nil 110,00,00,000 40.58% Nil (-11.49%)
2 President of
India 45,12,10,000 29.09% Nil 75,12,10,000 59.42% Nil 11.49%
(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SN Particulars Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
L. GOVERNMENT OF
GUJARAT
At the beginning of the | 110 Crore 70.91% 110 Crore 70.91%
year
Date wise Increase / | Decreasein
Decrease in Promoters | percentage of
Shareholding during the | shareholding
year specifying the | due to allotment
reasons for increase / | ofsharesto H.E
decrease (e.g. allotment | the President of
/transfer / bonus/ sweat | India (Gol)
equity etc.):
10 crore on
(24/07/2017) (-4.30%) 66.61%
10 Crore on
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10 Crore on
(06/01/2018) (-3.39%) 59.42%
A At the end of the year 110Crore 59.42% 110 Crore 59.42%
1L PRESIDENT OF INDIA
At the beginning of the | 45.121 Crore 29.09% 45.121 Crore 88.51%
year
Date wise Increase / | Increasein
Decrease in Promoters | shareholding
Shareholding during the | due to further
year specifying the | allotment of
reasons for increase / | equity shares.
decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat | 10 crore on 165.121 crore
equity etc.): (24/07/2017) | 4299 (ason24.07.17) | 92.80%
10 Crore on 3.81% 175.121 Crore
(23/09/2017) (as on 23.09.17) 96.61%
é&%"fﬁz‘(’;’l o |339% 185.121 Crore
(as on 06.01.2018) 100%
B At the end of the year 75.121 Crore 40.58% 75.121 Crore 40.58%
Grand 155.121 100% 185.121 Crore 100%
Total Crore
(A+B)
(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoter s and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs): - Not Applicable

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year Year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year N.A N.A N.A N.A
Date wise Increase / Decrease in | N.A N.A N.A N.A
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year N.A N.A N.A N.A
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) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Shareholding at the Cumulative Reason for
Directors and each Key beginning of the year | Shareholding during | Change(e.g.
Managerial Personnel the Year allotment /

No.of | 9%oftotal | No.of |%oftotal | ransfer/

shares shares of shares | shares of bon.us/ sweat
the the equity etc.):

company company

At the beginning of the year
1 Shri Rajiv Gauba, IAS, | 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
Secretary MoUD & Ex-
officio Chairman

[On behalf of H.E the
President of India]

Smt. Jhanja Tripathy, Joint
2 ) . 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
Secretary &  Financial
Advisory, MoUD

[On behalf of H.E the

President of India]

3 Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha,, | 19 0.00% 10 0.00%
0OSD(UT) & Joint Secretary,
MoUD

[On behalf of H.E the NIL
President of India]

Shri I. P. Gautam, IAS(Retd)
Managing Director

[On  behalf of Hon'ble
Governor of Gujarat]

10 0.00% 10 0.00%

Shri Biren Parmar, IAAS - _ _ _ _
5 | Director (Finance) - Whole | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Time Director

Shri Sahadeva Singh,
6 | Director (Projects) - Whole | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Time Director

Shri S. S. Sabuwala - Chief _ _ . .
Financial Officer Nil Nil Nil Nil

Shri Navin Varma-
8 Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Company Secretary
Date wise Increase /| N.A N.A N.A N.A
Decrease in  Promoters
Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer [/
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

1 Shri Durga Shanker Mishra, | 10 0.00% 10 0.00% Transfer
IAS, Secretary MoHUA & Ex-
officio Chairman

[On Dbehalf of H.E the
President of India]

Smt. Jhanja Tripathy, Joint
2 ; . 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
Secretary &  Financial
Advisory, MoHUA

[On behalf of H.E the

President of India]

3 Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha, | 19 0.00% 10 0.00%
0OSD(UT) & Joint Secretary,
MoHUA

[On behalf of H.E the
President of India]

Shri L. P. Gautam, IAS(Retd)

4 Managing Director 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
[On  behalf of Hon'ble
Governor of Gujarat]
Shri S. S. Rathore, Retd. Addi.

5 | Chief Secretary (Roads & |10 0.00% 10 0.00%

Building), Govt. of
Gujarat[On behalf of Hon’ble
Governor of Gujarat]

Shri Biren Parmar, IAAS -
6 | Director (Finance) - Whole | Nj] Nil Nil Nil
Time Director

Shri Sahadeva Sil’lgh, Nil Nil Nil Nil
7 Director (Projects) - Whole
Time Director
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8 Shri S. S. Sabuwala - Chief | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Financial Officer

Shri Navin Varma-

9 Company Secretary (up to . ) ) )
30.11.2017) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shri Hiteshkumar Bhamare

10
- Company Secretary (w.e.f: | Nj] Nil Nil Nil

06.01.2018)

V. INDEBTEDNESS (AS PER IND AS)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding Unsecured Deposits Total
. Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year (Gol + GoG)
877.54 877.54
i) Principal Amount ) Crore ) Crore
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
877.54 . 877.54
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Crore Nil Crore
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
700.88
* Addition (Gol + GoG) ] Crore ] 700.88 Crore
* Reduction - - - -
Net Change Nil 7&%?5 Nil 700.88 Crore
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
1578.42 1578.42
i) Principal Amount ) Crore ) Crore
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
. 1578.42 . 1578.42
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Crore Nil Crore
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
SN. Particulars of | Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Remuneration Amount
Shri Biren Parmar, | Shri Sahadeva
Shri Indrajeet IAAS Singh
Prasad Gautam Whole Time
Managing Director Whole Time
Director (Finance ) Director
(Projects)
1 Gross salary
Rs.13,56,691 Rs.30,77,997 Rs.39,11,772 | Rs.83,46,460

(a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in Rs:13,56,691 Rs,30,77,997 Rs.39,11,772 | Rs.83,46,460
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961
(b) Value of

erquisites u/s . . .
11)7(3) Income/- Nil Nil Nil Nil
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu
of salary under
section 17(3) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Income- tax Act,
1961

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil

4 Commission
- as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil
- others,

5 Others, please Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) Rs.13,56,691 Rs.30,77,997 Rs.39,11,772 | Rs.83,46,460
Ceiling as per as
per the Act N.A N.A N.A
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B. Remuneration to other directors

S Particulars of Name of Directors Total
N. Remuneration Amount
Shri Anil Shri Shri Shri Shri S. S. Shri Shri Shri Shri Smt. Shri Shri Rs.
Mukim, Mukesh Punamchand | Ashwini Rathore Rajiv Durga Shailendra | Mukund | Jhanja Rajeev Sanjay
IAS Puri, IAS Parmar, IAS Kumar, Gauba, Shanker [Singh kumar Tripathi, | Dwivedi Kumar
IAS IAS Mishra, Sinha IRAS Garg
IAS

1 Independent -
Directors -
Fee for attending -
board committee - - - - - - - - - ; . _
meetings
Commission - - - - - - - R R - R N
Others, please -
specify
Total (1) - - - - - - - - - B B B B

2 Other Non-
Executive - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Directors
*Fee for

attending board/ Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

committee 18000 5000 23000 18000 27000 3000 94000
meetings
Commission - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Others, please -
specify

Total (2) - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total (B)=(1+2) Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
18000 5000 23000 18000 27000 3000 94000

Total Managerial
Remuneration

**0Overall Ceiling

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
as per the Act

*The sitting fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors (Nominee of Government of Guajrat) has been paid in the Account of Bureau of Public
Enterprises, Government of Gujarat.

**As per the notification dated 5% June, 2015 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
Government Companies. In view of the same the overall ceiling of managerial remuneration is not applicable to MEGA Company Limited.
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SN | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration
CEO Shri S. S. Sabuwala, Shri Navin Shri Hitesh Total
CFO Varma Bhamare
Company Company
Secretary Secretary
(up to. (w.ef
30.11.2017) 06.01.2018)

1 Gross salary - Rs. 15,00,374 Rs.11,13,122 Rs.3,97,843 Rs.30,11,339
(a) Salary as - Rs.15,00,374 Rs.11,13,122 Rs.3,97,843 Rs.30,11,339
per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1)
of the
Income-tax
Act, 1961
(b) Value of - Nil Nil Nil
perquisites
u/s17(2)

Income-tax

Act, 1961

(c) Profits in - Nil Nil Nil
lieu of salary

under section

17(3)

Income-tax

Act, 1961

2 Stock Option - Nil Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity | - Nil Nil Nil

4 Commission - Nil Nil Nil
- as % of - Nil Nil Nil
profit
others, - Nil Nil Nil
specify...

5 Others, please | - Nil Nil Nil
specify
Total - Rs.15,00,374 Rs.11,13,122 Rs.3,97,843 | Rs.30,11,339
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VIIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | ifany (give
Act Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Compounding

fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding | - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding | - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding | - - - - -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
Metro-link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Metro-link Express
for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%' March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
‘Financial Statements’).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial
position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder
as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial
position) of the Company as at 31%' March 2018, and its loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give
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in the “Annexure — A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3
and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder as amended.

e) As the company is a Government Company, in terms of notification no. G.S.R.
463(E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
sub-section (2) of section 164 is not applicable to the company.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure — B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its

financial position in its financial statements. Refer Note 23 to the financial
statements;
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

3. In terms of section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure — C” a statement on
the directions and sub directions issued under the aforesaid section by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 106041W/W100136

Sd/-
(G. R. Parmar)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 23/07/2018 Membership No. 121462
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ANNEXURE - A
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our Independent Auditor's Report, of even date, to the members of Metro link
Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited on Financial
Statements for the year ended 31° March 2018)

0] (&) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) All the fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company as at 31st March 2018
except in respect of one freehold land situated at survey no. 525 at Kathvada,
Vastral, Ahmedabad admeasuring 18,000 square meters having book value
of Rs. 16,82,50,000/- as at 31.03.2018.

(i)  The Company is in construction phase and possess only capital inventory, which
has been verified by the management during the year. As per the explanation
provided to us, no material discrepancies were noted during such verification.

(i)  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liabilities partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3 (iii)
[(@) to (c)] of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not given loans, investments, given guarantees or security in terms
of sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not accepted deposits, within meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. No order has
been passed by the company law board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act.
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ANNEXURE - A
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our Independent Auditor's Report, of even date, to the members of Metro link
Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited on Financial
Statements for the year ended 31° March 2018)

(vii) (&) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income
tax, sales tax, goods and service tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, no undisputed amounts
payable were in arrears as at 31% March 2018 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and
service tax, service tax, duty of excise and customs duty which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

The particulars of dues of value added tax as at 31%' March 2018 which have
not been deposited on account of dispute, are as follows:

Period to
Name of Nature of Ampunt which the F‘”“m wher'e the
(in dispute is
statute dues amount X
Lakhs) pending
relates
Gujarat Value Value Added Financial Commissioner
Added Tax Act, Tax (VAT) 885.85 | Year 2012- Appeals
2003 13 (Gandhinagar)
Guijarat Value Value Added Financial Commissioner
Added Tax Act, Tax (VAT) 59.90 | Year 2013- Appeals
2003 14 (Gandhinagar)
945.75

(vii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
government. The Company has not taken any loan from any financial institution or
bank or issued debenture.
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ANNEXURE - A
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our Independent Auditor's Report, of even date, to the members of Metro link
Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited on Financial
Statements for the year ended 31° March 2018)

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instruments). The money raised by way of term loans have
been applied for the purpose for which those are raised during the year.

(x)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been, noticed or reported during the
year, nor we have been informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company by virtue of the provisions of notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5
June, 2015 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, is exempt
from the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xi))  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and Company being a government company,
transactions with other government companies are exempt for the compliance of
Section 188 of the Act, in terms of notification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated 5th June
2015, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian
Accounting Standard.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
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ANNEXURE - A
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our Independent Auditor's Report, of even date, to the members of Metro link
Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited on Financial
Statements for the year ended 31° March 2018)

paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 106041W/W100136

Sd/-
(G. R. Parmar)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 23/07/2018 Membership No. 121462
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ANNEXURE - B
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our Independent Auditor's Report, of even date, to the
members of Metro link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company
Limited on Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2018)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Metro-link
Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited (“the
Company”), as of 31% March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
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reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
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future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31° March 2018, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 106041W/W100136

Sd/-
(G. R. Parmar)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 23/07/2018 Membership No. 121462
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ANNEXURE -C
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to

in paragraph 3 under

"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements” section of our Independent Auditor's Report, if even date, to the
members of Metro-link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company
Limited on Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2018)

Directions / Sub-Directions Issued
by Comptroller and Auditor General
of India

Response

Whether the Company has clear title /
lease deeds for freehold and leasehold
respectively? If not please state the
area of freehold or leasehold land for
which title / lease deeds are not
available?

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company,
the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company as at 31st
March 2018 except in respect of one freehold
land situated at survey no. 525 at Kathvada,
Vastral, Ahmedabad, admeasuring 18,000
square meters having book value of Rs.
16,82,50,000/- as at 31.03.2018.

Whether there are any cases of waiver
/ write offs of debts/loans/interest etc., if
yes, the reasons therefore and the
amount involved.

As per information and explanations given to
us and based on examination of the records
of the Company, there are no cases of any
waiver of loan / debt / interest during the year.

Whether proper records are maintained
for inventories lying with third parties &
assets received as gift from Govt. or
other authorities?

As per information and explanations given to
us and based on the examination of the
records provided to us, no inventory of the
Company was lying with third parties during
the year.

During the year company has not received
any assets as gifts from Government or other
authorities.

Whether the company has taken
adequate  measures to prevent
encroachment of idle land owned by it.
Whether any land of the company is
encroached, under litigation, not put to
use or declared surplus? Details may
be provided.

As per information and explanations given to
us, the company has taken adequate
measures to prevent encroachment of idle
land owned by it.

As per information and explanations given to
us, there is no land of the company which is
encroached, under litigation, not put to use or
declared surplus.

Whether the system in vogue for
identification of projects to be taken up
under Public Private Partnership is in
line with the guidelines / policies of the

As per information and explanations given to
us and based on the examination of the
records provided to us, the company has not
under taken any projects under Public Private
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ANNEXURE -C
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to

in paragraph 3 under

"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements” section of our Independent Auditor's Report, if even date, to the
members of Metro-link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company
Limited on Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2018)

Directions / Sub-Directions Issued
by Comptroller and Auditor General
of India

Response

government? Comment on deviation, if
any.

Partnerships and therefore the given direction
is not applicable to the company.

Whether the system of monitoring the
execution of works vis-a-vis the
milestones stipulated in the agreement
is in existence and the impact of cost
escalation, if any, revenues/losses from
contracts, etc, have been properly
accounted for in the books.

As per information and explanations given to
us and based on the examination of the
records provided to us, the system of
monitoring the execution of works vis-a-vis
the milestones stipulated in the agreement is
in existence and the impact of cost escalation,
if any, revenues/losses from contracts, etc,
have been properly accounted for in the
books.

Whether funds received / receivable for
specific schemes from Central/ State
agencies were properly accounted for /
utilized? List the cases of deviations.

As per information and explanations given to
us and based on the examination of the
records provided to us, funds received from
Government of India and Government of
Gujarat were properly accounted.

Whether the bank guarantees have
been revalidated in time.

As per information and explanations given to
us and based on the examination of the
records provided to us, the bank guarantees

have been revalidated on time by the
Company.
Comment on the confirmation of |In our opinion and according to the

balances of trade receivables ,trade
payables , term deposits , bank
accounts and cash obtained.

information and explanations given to us, the
Company has a policy and procedure for
obtaining confirmation of year end accounts
balances of trade payables, terms deposits,
advance given to suppliers / contractors and
bank accounts. In our opinion and considering
the size and nature of business of the
Company, the extent of confirmations called
for and its responses received by the
company are sufficient.
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ANNEXURE -C
TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our Independent Auditor's Report, if even date, to the
members of Metro-link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company
Limited on Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2018)

Directions / Sub-Directions Issued
by Comptroller and Auditor General Response
of India
The cost incurred on abandoned |In our opinion and according to the
projects may be quantified and the | information and explanations given to us and
amount actually written off shall be | based on the examination of the records
mentioned. provided to us, there are no abandoned
projects by the company.

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 106041W/W100136

Sd/-
(G. R. Parmar)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 23/07/2018 Membership No. 121462
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes (=5 X el
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 33,892.94 27,346.54
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 207,745.54 123,481.28
(c) Intangible assets 6 41,944.92 43,384.50
(d) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 97.15 102.70
(e) Other non-current assets 8 67,603.26 32,067.11
Total non-current assets 351,283.81 226,382.13
Il.Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,098.86 10,958.64
(i) Loans 7 16,411.12 25,232.55
(iii) Others financial assets 7 711.70 646.92
(b) Other current assets 8 46.75 1,214.93
Total current assets 18,268.43 38,053.04
Total Assets 369,552.24 264,435.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 185,121.00 155,121.00
Instrument entirely equity in nature 10 46,700.00 31,200.00
Other equity 11 (6,643.40) 3,804.62
Total equity 225,177.60 190,125.62
LIABILITIES
I. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 60,093.25 16,777.21
(b) Long-term provisions 13 116.03 108.06
(c) Deferred Government grants 14 51,979.37 39,915.56
Total non-current liabilities 112,188.65 56,800.83
II.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 12 341.52 201.83
(ii) Other financial liabilities 12 31,260.52 16,355.06
(b) Other current liabilities 15 558.17 899.43
(c) Short-term provisions 13 25.78 52.40
Total current liabilities 32,185.99 17,508.72
Total equity and liabilities 369,552.24 264,435.17

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.106041W/W100136

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Co. Ltd.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
G.R.Parmar Dr.l. P. Gautam S.S.Rathore
Partner Managing Director Director

M.No.121462

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23-July-2018

DIN:00260908

Sd/-
S. S. Sabuwala
Chief Financial Officer

New Delhi
23-July-2018

Place :
Date
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Sd/-

Hiteshkumar Bhamare
Asst. Company Secretary
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

.. Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Income
Other income 16 1,700.17 3,134.85
Total income (I) 1,700.17 3,134.85
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17 1,564.35 1,322.33
Finance costs 18 243.03 117.20
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 1,777.99 1,297.58
Other expenses 20 3,560.72 1,647.88
Total expenses (Il) 7,146.09 4,384.99
Less: Expenses capitalised and transferred to 5A1 (6,889.94) (4,382.86)
Incidental Expenses Pending Capitalisation
Profit before exceptional items and tax (lI)=(I-I1) 1,444.02 3.132.72
Exceptional items (IV) 21 11,584.21 -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (V) = (IlI-1V) (10,140.19) 3,132.72
Tax expense
Current tax 22 307.83 963.77
Total tax expense (VI) 307.83 963.77
Profit/(Loss) for the period (VII) = (V-VI) (10,448.02) 2,168.95

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit 37.92 5.03
Less: Re-measurement gains on defined 5A1 (37.92) (5.03)
benefit plans capitalised and transferred to
Incidental Expenses Pending Capitalisation

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VII+VIII) (10,448.02) 2,168.95

Earning/(Loss) per equity share [Nominal value per
share Rs.10/- (March 31, 2017: Rs.10/-)]
Basic (0.62) 0.15

Diluted 26 (0.62) 0.13

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Metro-link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA)
ICAI Firm Registration No.106041W/W 100136 Co. Ltd.
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
G.R.Parmar Dr.l. P. Gautam S.S.Rathore
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No0.121462 DIN:00260908 DIN:00128987
Sd/- Sd/-
S. S. Sabuwala Hiteshkumar Bhamare
Chief Financial Officer Asst. Company Secretary
ACS:33182
Place : New Delhi Place New Delhi
Date :23-July-2018 Date 23-July-2018
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Pertienilars For the year ended For the year ended
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
(A) |Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Loss) From Operating Activity (10,140.19) 3,132.72
Adjustments For:
Impairment of CWIP due to Fraud identified 11,584.21
Add/(Less) Interest Income (1,457.73) (3,289.99)
Add/(Less) Interest Expense 243.03 -
Add/(Less) Profit on Sale of Assets (1.46) (4.38)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 227.86 (161.65)
Changes in Working Capital - -
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activity (Total A) 227.86 (161.65)
B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital Works in Progress (111,876.40) (70,739.15)
Disposal of assets 2.04 19.87
Interest Received 1,457.73 2,362.26
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (307.83) (983.85)
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in) Investing Activity (Total B) (110,724.46) (69,340.87)
(C) |Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Share Capital 30,000.00 22,600.00
Increase/Decrease in Long Term Debt 55,379.85 31,973.11
Proceeds from Instrument entirely in Equity nature 15,500.00 -
Finance Cost (243.03) (993.52)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activity (Total C) 100,636.82 53,579.59
(D) |Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) (9,859.78) (15,922.93)
(E) |Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,958.64 26,881.57
(F) |Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D) + (E) 1,098.86 10,958.64
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents comprise (Ref. Note - 12)
Balances with Banks
-On Current Accounts 911.37 303.08
-On Auto Sweep FD 187.49 155.56
-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 10,500.00
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,098.86 10,958.64

Notes to Cash Flow Statement

(@) The abowe Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7.
(b) Purchase of Fixed Assets are stated inclusive of movements of Capital Work in Progress, Assets under development.

(©) Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital W.I.P. Fixed Assets is Rs. 113654.39 Lakhs (PY Rs. 72036.73 Lakhs) out of that non cash is
Rs. 1777.99 Lakhs (PY Rs. 1297.58 Lakhs) and cash is Rs. 100955.87 Lakhs (PY Rs. 37637.01 Lakhs) and impact of working capital

change thereon is Rs. 10920.53 Lakhs (PY (33102.14 Lakhs)) (as below)

Particulars

Impact of Change in working capital relarted to CWIP
-Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions
-Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
-Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions
-Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilites
-(Increase)/Decrease in Long Loans & Advances
-(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances
-(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets

Current Year Previous Year
(10,920.53) 33102.14
7.97 67.82
139.69 (143.39)
(26.62) 29.76
14,564.20 12709.24
(35,530.60) (9,169.01)
8,756.65 27579.44
1,168.18 2,028.28

(d) Cash Flow from Financing activities includes increase in long term debt due to foreign exchange translation loss of Rs.2877.33 Lakh and

Interest of Rs. 213.68 Lakh as of 31st March 2018.

As per our report of even date attached

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.106041W/W 100136

Sd/-
G.R.Parmar
Partner
M.No0.121462

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23-July-2018
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Sd/- Sd/-

I.P.Gautam S.S.Rathore

Managing Director Director

DIN:00260908 DIN:00128987

Sd/- Sd/-

S.S.Sabuwala Hiteshkumar Bhamare

Chief Financial Officer Asst. Company Secretary
ACS:33182

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23-July-2018
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Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

A. Equity share capital (Rupees in Lakhs)

Balance SIOS:

Note 9 :
As at March 31, 2016 132,521.00
Issue of Equity Share capital 22,600.00
As at March 31, 2017 155,121.00
Issue of Equity Share capital 30,000.00
As at March 31, 2018 185,121.00

B. Instrument entirely equity in nature (Rupees in Lakhs)

Balance Amount
Note 11
As at March 31, 2016 -
Change during the year (Refer Note 11.3) 31,200.00
As at March 31, 2017 31,200.00
Change during the year 15,500.00
As at March 31, 2018 46,700.00

C. Other equity (Rupees in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Sharg . .
application Retained Earnings Total

money

Note 11 Note 11
Balance as at April 1, 2016 31,200.00 1,635.67 32,835.67
Profit/(Loss) for the period - 2,168.95 2,168.95
other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year - 2,168.95 2,168.95
Movement during the year (Refer Note 11.3) (31,200.00) - (31,200.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2017 - 3,804.62 3,804.62
Balance as at April 1, 2017 - 3,804.62 3,804.62
Profit/(Loss) for the period - (10,448.02) (10,448.02)
other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (10,448.02) (10,448.02)
Movement during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 - (6,643.40) (6,643.40)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Co. Ltd.

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.106041W/W 100136

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
G.R.Parmar Dr.l. P. Gautam S.S.Rathore
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No0.121462 DIN:00260908 DIN:00128987

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23-July-2018

Sd/-
S. S. Sabuwala
Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23-July-2018
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1. Corporate Information

Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar And Ahmedabad (MEGA) Company Limited (‘the Company’)
(CIN:U60200GJ2010SGC059407) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is
located at Block No.1, First Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Sector 10/A, Gandhinagar 382010. The
Company is 50:50 Joint Venture between Government of India (GOI) and Government of Gujarat
(GOG). The Company’s main object is to carry on the business to set up, manage, operate and
maintain a Rail Based Mass Rapid Transport System around and between Ahmedabad and
Gandhinagar to provide the general public with a fast, reliable, convenient, efficient, modern and
economical mode of public transport.

It has an independent board nominated equally by the joint venture partners having a non-executive
Chairman and a whole time Managing Director. During the current accounting period, the Company
was in pre-operative/construction stage.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
23" July, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS") as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),
o Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following are the significant accounting policies adopted and applied by the company in
preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.
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An asset is current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e |tis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company's normal operating cycle is not
clearly identifiable, it is considered to be twelve months.

3.2. Foreign currencies
Functional and Presentation Currency

Iltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency'). The financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company’s functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement
of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised as income or expense in the period in which
they arise. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
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measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3.3. Fair value measurement
The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability
Or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
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3.4.

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The company’'s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and for non-recurring measurement. External valuers are involved for valuation of
significant assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by the management after
discussion with and approval by the company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers
are normally rotated every three years. The management decides, after discussions with the
Company'’s external valuers, which valuation technigques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

The management, in conjunction with the company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes. (refer note 30)
o Disclosures for valuation methods, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost of acquisition / construction, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price
and any attributable cost for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; like
freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses, net of CENVAT recoverable.

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly attributable and ascertainable, to
completing the project. These costs include expenditure of plant and machinery, cost of laying
assets, cost of survey, commissioning and testing charge, detailed engineering and interest on
borrowings attributable to acquisition of such assets.

Subsequent expenditure, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an item of

property plant and equipment are added to its books value only if they increase the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance and the cost of the
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item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Component accounting of assets: If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. The Company has identified, reviewed, tested and determined the
componentisation of the significant assets.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which are yet to be
commissioned and also includes capital inventory. The expenditure will be kept as Capital Work-in-
Progress (CWIP) till the defined project phase is completed after which the same will be transferred
/ allocated to the identifiable Fixed Assets.

All the directly identifiable and ascertainable expenditure, incidental and related to construction
incurred during the period of construction on a project, till it is commissioned, is kept as Capital
work in progress (CWIP) and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the
respective “Property, Plant and Equipment”.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under other non- current assets.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon
sale or retirement of the asset.

Income pertaining to Sale of tender documents is netted-off adjusted against expenditure incurred
during construction period. Liquidated damages (LD) recovered is adjusted netted-off against
expenditure incurred during construction period. No income tax provision has been made on
liquidated damages as the same has been considered as capital receipt.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over useful
lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 except for
the assets mentioned below. Based on the management estimates the residual value of the assets
has been considered as Nil.

i) Plant & Machinery: In case of the following assets mentioned hereunder, depreciation has
been provided based on the estimated useful life of the assets on the basis of technical
estimation:
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Nature of Assets Useful Life
Other Plant & Machinery — Barricading 5 Years
Other Plant & Machinery — Containers and

Security Cabins 5 Years
Other Plant & Machinery — Signage 3 Years
Other Plant & Machinery — Solar Systems,

Power Generator Set, Motors & GPS Instrument 5 Years

ii) Leased Assets:

In case of leased of assets mentioned hereunder, depreciation has been provided
considering either
the tenure of agreement or 5 Years whichever is less.

Nature of Assets Useful Life

Leasehold Improvement 5 Years

In case the leasehold asset is vacated earlier than 5 years the total unamortized balance
will be written off to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which the premise is
vacated.

iii) Depreciation on assets acquired / disposed of during the year is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / disposal. Assets costing up to Rs.5000/- are
depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

iv) Mobile Instruments have been depreciated over a period of two years and accordingly
depreciation amount has been provided.

V) Library Books & CD have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or
over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 on the
basis of technical estimation.

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of
use with reference to date of addition / disposal.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.5. Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of

the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfiiment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement
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3.6.

conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Finance leases
that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the
borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is
accounted in such case by actual rent for the period.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except the case where incremental lease
reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is accounted in such case by actual rent for the
period. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss, in
the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company
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3.7.

3.8.

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The Company capitalises software as Intangible Asset where it is
expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Cost associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as expenses as and when incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years considering the
changes in the technology and future economic benefits.
Rights to use are amortized over the tenure of the rights in equal proportion.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
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3.9.

independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
guoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for
a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In
this case, the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or
at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Revenue Recognition
Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
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financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of
profit or loss.

Other Income

Other income is recognised on accrual basis unless otherwise specified. Interest income is
recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable

3.10. Financial instruments —initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised
initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost
¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Company classifies its financial assets in the above mentioned categories based on:
e The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets, and
e The contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.
e Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
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interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial
asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at
fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Embedded foreign currency derivative

Embedded foreign currency derivatives are not separated from the host contract if they are
closely related. Such embedded derivatives are closely related to the host contract, if the
host contract is not leveraged, does not contain any option feature and requires payments
in one of the following currencies:

° the functional currency of any substantial party to that contract,

° the currency in which the price of the related good or service that is acquired or
delivered is routinely denominated in commercial transactions around the world,

. a currency that is commonly used in contracts to purchase or sell non-financial items

in the economic environment in which the transaction takes place (i.e. relatively
liquid and stable currency).

Foreign currency embedded derivatives which do not meet the above criteria are separated
and the derivative is accounted for at fair value through profit and loss. The Company
currently does not have any such derivatives which are not closely related.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a
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separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation
for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.

b) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings.

(i) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

e Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing and interest-free borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet
when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
options, cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and
interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

3.11. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.12. Government Grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
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which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded
at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or
similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below
the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a
government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and
the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable
to financial liabilities.

3.13. Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects
of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period). Income tax
expenses are recognised in statement of profit or loss except tax expenses related to items
recognised directly in reserves (including statement of other comprehensive income) which are
recognised with the underlying items.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised
outside Statement of Profit and Loss. Current income tax is recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
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can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the
Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the
Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date
and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.14. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
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The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
services rendered by employees is recognized during the period when the employee renders the
services. Short term employee benefits includes salary and wages, bonus, incentive and ex-gratia
and also includes accrued leave benefits, which are expected to be availed or en-cashed within
12 months from the end of the year.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan

The Company's state governed provident fund scheme are defined contribution
plans.Contribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accrued in
accordance with applicable statutes and deposited with the regulatory provident fund
authorities (Government administered provident fund scheme). The Group does not carry
any other obligation apart from the monthly contribution.

The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expenses in the statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present
value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance
sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross
obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Netinterest expense or income

c) Other long-term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The
present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the
fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the
net basis.
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d) Termination Benefits:
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.15. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

3.16. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operation

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and
contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of
de-recognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-
current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance
sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or is classified as
held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the statement of profit and loss.

3.17. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision for
contractual obligation is disclosed based on management's assessment of the probable outcome with
reference to the available information supplemented by experience of similar transactions. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
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Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc.
are recognised when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions for restructuring are recognised by
the Company when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation that the Company will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period and are not discounted to present value. The estimates of
outcome and financial effect are determined by the judgment of the management, supplemented by
experience of similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts.

The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the Company.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

1. A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

2. A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

3. A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are not provided for and if material, are disclosed by way of notes to financial
statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, Contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised
in the period in which the change occurs.

A contingent asset is disclosed by way of notes to financial statements, where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

3.18. Exceptional Iltems

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary
activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
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Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the
notes accompanying to the financial statements.

3.19. Event after the reporting period

4.1.

4.2.

Material adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance sheet
date) occurring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the financial statements. No
adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date)
occurring after the balance sheet date that represent material change and commitment affecting
the financial position are disclosed in the reports of the board of directors.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such
estimates and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about
the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Fair valuation of subordinate debt on initial recognition

The Company recognises the interest free subordinate debt at fair value on initial recognition which
differs from its transaction value. The difference between the transaction value and fair value is
recognised as Government grant since it represents an assistance received from government in the
form of waiver of interest. As the financial support from the government is for the capital expenditure
of development of infrastructure for Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project, i.e. Grant related to the non-
current assets, the benefit is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss account over the useful life
of the assets in the proportions of depreciation expense on the assets.

Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

Note 19 - Depreciation and Amortisation

Note 21 - Current/deferred tax expense

Note 23 - Contingent liabilities and assets

Note 25 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations
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Note 5 : Property, Plant and Equipment
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Fixed Assets Freehold land ImI;;f:\?::wzlr?ts Plant & machinery Vehicles Fu;?;ttll:rr: = eqﬁifg:qint Corgl:;;t:r « L|brf;r);tl)300ks Total CWIP
Hardware

Gross Cost

As at March 31, 2016 20,208.70 433.84 283.06 35.16 128.20 218.54 226.71 - 21,534.22 71,867.65

Additions 6,500.00 - - - 0.40 10.52 49.48 - 6,560.40 51,613.63

Deductions / Adjustments - 31.10 - - 2.58 5.73 5.16 - 44.57

As at March 31, 2017 26,708.70 402.74 283.06 35.16 126.02 223.33 271.03 - 28,050.05 123,481.28

Additions 6,586.13 65.95 - 104.80 49.25 30.51 24.72 - 6,861.36 95,848.47

Deductions / Adjustments - - - - - 6.68 16.95 - 23.63

As at March 31, 2018 33,294.83 468.69 283.06 139.96 175.27 247.16 278.80 - 34,887.78 219,329.75

Depreciation and Impairment

As at March 31, 2016 - 131.77 106.16 6.26 24.87 32.81 94.88 - 396.76 -

Depreciation for the year - 123.09 98.60 6.30 14.22 36.85 56.75 335.83 -

Deductions - 19.82 - - - 5.07 4.17 29.08 -

As at March 31, 2017 - 235.04 204.76 12.57 39.09 64.59 147.45 - 703.52 -

Depreciation for the year - 95.32 67.68 17.81 30.19 41.05 62.33 - 314.38

Impairment for the year - - - - - - - - - 11,584.21

Deductions - - - - - 6.11 16.95 - 23.06

As at March 31, 2018 - 330.36 272.45 30.38 69.28 99.53 192.83 - 994.84 11,584.21

Net Block

As at March 31, 2018 33,294.83 138.33 10.61 109.58 105.99 147.63 85.97 - 33,892.94 207,745.54

As at March 31, 2017 26,708.70 167.70 78.30 22.59 86.93 158.74 123.58 - 27,346.54 123,481.28

Note: As of 31st March,2018, Amount of Freehold Land includes cost of land taken under Right to Fair Compensation and Transparancy in Land Acquisition Rehabilitation and Resettelement Act, 2013 amounting to
Rs.5,626.75 Lakhs, which has been capitalised on takingover possession of land, payment of full amount of consideration and execution of agreement.
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Note 5.A: Capital Work In Progress

2017-18

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Phase-|
Description Opening As At :i'::r’::n/t Impairment Loss total Capitalised Balance As At
01.04.2017 el during the year During the Year 31.03.2018
during the Year
Station (Including Viaduct Inside The Station Box) 9,263.72 16,620.15 - 25,883.87 - 25,883.87
Depot 22,233.70 10,120.79 - 32,354.49 - 32,354.49
Viaduct (Excluding Station Length) 30,546.22 35,788.33 - 66,334.55 - 66,334.55
Traction & Power Supply 293.51 180.60 - 474.11 - 47411
General Consultancy 12,003.22 9,044.55 - 21,047.77 - 21,047.77
Shifting of Utilities 280.19 1,292.49 - 1,572.68 - 1,572.68
Resettlement & Rehabilitation 1,678.28 1,557.13 - 3,235.41 - 3,235.41
Under Ground Construction - 8,854.53 - 8,854.53 - 8,854.53
Bridge - 418.34 - 418.34 - 418.34
Capital Inventory - 4,303.94 - 4,303.94 - 4,303.94
Sub-Total (A) 76,298.84 88,180.85 = 164,479.69 = 164,479.69
Incidental Expense Pending Capitalisation (Refer Note 5.A.1) 8,805.86 7,676.66 - 16,482.52 - 16,482.52
Less: Tender Fees (244.48) (9.04) - (253.52) - (253.52)
Less: Liquidated Damages Recovered 1.77) - - (1.77) - (1.77)
Sub-Total (B) 8,559.61 7,667.62 - 16,227.23 - 16,227.23
Total C = (A+B) 84,858.45 95,848.47 = 180,706.92 = 180,706.92
e Opening As At Aﬁfjﬂlst:(r:ﬂlsn{ Impairment Loss Total Capitalised Balance As At
P 01.04.2017 N ) during the year During the Year 31.03.2018
during the Year
Land Development,Utility Shifting and Other Exp. 35,587.21 - - 35,587.21 - 35,587.21
Less : Provision for Impairment Loss of Other than Phase-I (Refer Note
29) - - (11,584.21) (11,584.21) - (11,584.21)
Incidental Expense Pending Capitalisation (Refer Note 5.A.2) 3,035.62 - - 3,035.62 - 3,035.62
Sub-Total (D) 38,622.83 & (11,584.21) 27,038.62 = 27,038.62
[ Total E = (C+D) [ 123,481.28 | 95,848.47 | (11,584.21)] 207,745.54 | 0l 207,745.54 |
[ Previous Year I 71,867.65 | 51,613.63 | -] 123,481.28 | - 123,481.28 |

Note: The Company was incorporated in February 2010 as a Government of Gujarat owned company. Subsequently the Company was converted in to 50:50 Joint Venture (JV) of GOl & GOG in
March 2015 for implementation of Ahnmedabad Metro Rail Phase-I. For Better presentation, the expenses incurred before conversion of the company in to JV are grouped and shown separately
under heading "Other Than Phase-I" on estimation basis.Before formation of JV, the Company was 100% Government of Gujarat owned company and other than Phase-1 expenses were incurred

out of equity funds provided by Government of Gujarat.

To reflect the true and fair position of accounts for phase-I, the Company requested to Government of Gujarat to settle the expenses pertaining to other than phase | which were incurred before
formation of SPV and to convert Rs.31,200 Lakhs share application money into additional subordinate debt and release additional funds for balance amount. Government of Gujarat has issued GR
No.MIS-112014-1100-1-DH Dated 4th July, 2016 vide which addtional subordinate debt of Rs.46,700 Lakhs is sanctioned and through the GR dated 24th January, 2018 sanctioned conversion of
Rs.31,200 Lakhs share application money into additional subordinate debt for financing expenditure incurred on other than phase-I of the project.

Further Government of Gujarat has released balance Rs.15,500 Lakhs during current financial year as additional subordinate debt. (Refer Note 11.3)

Note 5.A.1 : Statement of Incidental Expenses Pending Capitalisation-Phase |

s mLaniis)
. During the Year

Particular As At 31-3-2017 2017-18 As At 31-3-2018
Expenses
Employee Benefit Expense 2,621.93 1,564.35 4,186.27
Depreciation 2,827.65 1,777.99 4,605.65
Borrowing Cost 117.85 243.03 360.88
Foreign exchange Loss (net) - 1,432.27 1,432.27
Administrative Expense 3,998.78 1,872.30 5,871.08
Total (A) 9,566.21 6,889.94 16,456.15
CWIP
Borrowing Cost (Refer Note-a) 2,081.77 2,081.77
Total (B) = 2,081.77 2,081.77
Income
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 5.03 37.92 42.95
Tender Fee 244.48 9.04 253.52
Liguidated Damages Recovered 1.77 1.77
Total (C) 251.28 46.96 298.24
Transffered to CWIP
Transfer to General consultancy 20.70 - 20.70
Amortisation of Right of Use transffered to AUC 734.62 1,257.13 1,991.75
Total (D) 755.32 1,257.13 2,012.45
Net Incidental Expenses Pending Capitalisation 8.550.61 7.667.62 16.227.23

D = (A+B) - (C+D)

Note-a: This amount consists of Foreign Loan reinstate considered as borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 1792.79 Lakhs and interest on JICA loan amounting to Rs. 288.98 Lakhs as per IND AS 23

Note 5.A.2 : Statement of Incidental Expenses Pending Capitalisation- Other than Phase |

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. During the Year
Particular As At 31-3-2017 2017-18 As At 31-3-2018
Term Loan Processing Fee & Interest Cost 2,822.33 - 2,822.33
Employee Benefit Expense 1,243.43 - 1,243.43
Administrtive Expenses 1,551.34 - 1,551.34
Interest Income (2,581.48 - (2,581.48)
Net Incidental Expense Pending Capitalisation for Other than 3,035.62 _ 3,035.62

Phase-|
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Note 6 : Intangible assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Intangible assets Computer Software Right to Use Total

Cost

As at March 31, 2016 768.93 - 768.93
Additions 23.74 43,786.10 43,809.84
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2017 792.67 43,786.10 44,578.77
Additions 24.03 - 24.03
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2018 816.70 43,786.10 44,602.80

Amortisation and Impairment

As at March 31, 2016 232.51 - 232.51
Amortisation for the year 227.14 734.62 961.76
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2017 459.65 734.62 1,194.27
Amortisation for the year 206.48 1,257.13 1,463.61
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2018 666.13 1,991.75 2,657.88
Net Block

As at March 31, 2018 150.57 41,794.35 41,944.92
As at March 31, 2017 333.02 43,051.48 43,384.50
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Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Loans (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Current

Unsecured considered good

Deposits with GSFS Ltd. 16,411.12 25,232.55
16,411.12 25,232.55
Total Loans 16,411.12 25,232.55

7 (b) Cash and cash equivalent

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Balances with Banks

In current account 911.37 303.08

In deposit Account (with original maturity upto 3 months) - 10,500.00

In Deposit Account (Auto Sweep FD) 187.49 155.56
Cash on hand - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,098.86 10,958.64

7 (c) Other financial assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Unsecured, considered good
(i) Non-current

Security deposits 97.15 102.70
97.15 102.70

Current
Security deposits 706.88 640.95
Interest Accrued But Not Due on Fixed Deposits 4.82 5.97
711.70 646.92
Total financial liabilities 808.85 749.62

7 (d) Financial assets by category

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
March 31, 2018

Loans - - 16,411.12
Cash & cash equivalents - - 1,098.86
Other financial assets - - 808.85
Total Financial assets - - 18,318.83
March 31, 2017

Loans - - 25,232.55
Cash & cash equivalents - - 10,958.64
Other financial assets - - 749.62
Total Financial assets - - 36,940.81

Refer Note 31 for Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

Refer Note 30 for Fair value disclosures
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Note 8 : Other current/ non-current assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Non-current

Capital advances 67,537.35 32,043.85
Advance Income Tax ( Net of Provisions) 65.91 16.74
Prepaid expenses - 6.52
67,603.26 32,067.11

Current
Other Advances - 0.21
Advances to Staff - 0.09
Prepaid expenses 46.75 1,214.63
46.75 1,214.93
Total 67,650.01 33,282.04

Advance to Directors or to firm / Private company where director is interested - -

Tax Assets (Net)
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Tax Paid in Advance & TDS receivables 1,337.85 2,254.20
Less:

Provision for tax (1,271.94) (2,237.46)
Total 65.91 16.74
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Note 9 : Equity share capital

(In Lakhs)
. As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars
No. of shares Rs. In Lakhs  No. of shares Rs. In Lakhs
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 40,000.00 400,000.00 40,000.00 400,000.00
Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 18,512.10 185,121.00 15,512.10 155,121.00
Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 18,512.10 185,121.00 15,512.10 155,121.00
Total 185,121.00 155,121.00
9.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period
(In Lakhs)
. As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars
No. of shares Rs. In Lakhs  No. of shares Rs. In Lakhs
At the beginning of the period 15,512.10 155,121.00 13,252.10 132,521.00
Add :
Shares issued during the year 3,000.00 30,000.00 2,260.00 22,600.00
Qutstanding at the end of the period 18,512.10 185,121.00 15,512.10 155,121.00

9.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is entitled
to one wote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

9.3. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Name of the Shareholder
No. of shares % of shareholding No. of shares % of shareholding

The Governor of Gujarat and its Nominees 11,000.00 59.42 11,000.00 70.91
The President of India & his nominees (Ministry of 7.512.10 20.58 4.512.10 29.09
Urban Dewvelopment)

18,512.10 100.00 15,512.10 100.00

9.4. Equity shares issued as fully paid up by bonus shares, by bought back or otherwise than by cash during the preceding five
years : Nil

9.5. The Company does not have any holding company.
9.6. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 32

Note 10 : Instrument entirely equity in nature
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
From Gowvernment of Gujarat (Additional Subordinate Debt) 46,700.00 31,200.00
(Refer Note 11.3)

Total Other equity 46,700.00 31,200.00
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Note 11 : Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2017

Balance As at March 31, 2018

Note 11.1 Share application money

Share application money (Refer Note (i) below)
Balance as per last financial statements - 31,200.00
Add / (Less) movement during the year - (31,200.00)

Note 11.2 Reserves & Surplus

Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements 3,804.62 1,635.67
Add: profit/(loss) for the year (10,448.02) 2,168.95
(6,643.40) 3,804.62

Total reserves & surplus (6,643.40) 3,804.62
Total Other equity (6,643.40) 3,804.62

Note 11.3 State Government has issued GR No.MIS-112014-1100-1-DH Dated 4th July, 2016 vide which addtional subordinate debt of Rs. 46,700
Lakhs is sanctioned for expenditure incurred on other than phase-I of the project. The expenditure incurred are to be maintained in Balance sheet as
CWIP. As and when these assets will be utilised for other phases, amount of Rs.46,700 Lakhs (P.Y.: Rs.31,200 Lakhs) lying as additional subordinate
debt will be conwerted as Equity from GOG. This conversion of additional subordinate debt in to equity will be on face value. Hence, Company has

classified such conwertible instrument as Instrument entirely equity in nature and presented below the share capital and above the other equity head.

Note 12 : Financial liabilities

12 (a) Long-term Borrowings

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Long-term Borrowings (refer note (a) below)
Non-current portion

Unsecured
- From Japan International Co-operation Agency (JICA) through Government of India 57,527.39 14,972.43
(PTA)
- From Government of India (Subordinate Debt) 1,540.21 876.35
- From Government of Gujarat (Subordinate Debt) 1,025.65 928.43
Total borrowings 60,093.25 16,777.21

Note (i): Interest free subordinate debts from Gol and GoG for the Phase-l is repayable after the repayment of interest bearing senior debt for Phase-I
from JICA through Gol. The tenure of JICA Loan is 30 years and rate of interest is 1.40% p.a.

Note (ii): Reconciliation of JICA Loan in INR equivalent vis-a-vis PTA recowerable, interest accrued & senice charges payable thereon with Controller of
Aid, Accounts & Audit (CAAA) of Ministry of Finance is in progress and adjustment, if any, required shall be made on reconciliation.

12 (b) Trade payable

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Current

Other trade payable 341.52 201.83
Total 341.52 201.83

12 (c) Other financial liabilities

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Current
Payable to employees 116.94 106.32
Payable in respect of Capital goods 14,901.10 4,541.28
Pass Through Assistance (PTA) from GOI 16,141.79 10,330.93
Other financial liabilities 100.69 1,376.53
Total 31,260.52 16,355.06
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12 (d) Financial liabilities by category

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars FVTPL At amortised cost
March 31, 2018

Borrowings - 60,093.25
Trade payable - 341.52
Other financial liabilities - 31,260.52
Total Financial liabilities - 91,695.29
March 31, 2017

Borrowings - 16,777.21
Trade payable - 201.83
Other financial liabilities - 16,355.06
Total Financial liabilities - 33,334.10

Refer Note 31 for Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies
Refer Note 30 for Fair value disclosures

Note 13 : Provisions

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 25)

Provision for Gratuity 64.79 65.45
Provision For compensated absences 51.24 42.61
116.03 108.06
Current

Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 25)
Provision for Gratuity 1.63 0.95
Provision For compensated absences 24.15 51.45
25.78 52.40
Total 141.81 160.46

Note 14 : Deferred Government Grant

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Non-current

Deferred Government Grant (Refer Note-14(a)) 51,979.37 39,915.56
Grant received from GOG for preparation of Detailed Project Report (Refer Note-
14(b))
Total 51,979.37 39,915.56

14 (a) Deferred Government Grant

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1 39,715.56 23,635.18
Received during the year 11,333.59 16,080.38
As at March 31 51,049.15 39,715.56

Abowe grant has been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

attached to these grants as at March 31.

14 (b) Grant received from GOG for preparation of Detailed Project Report

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1 200.00 200.00
Received during the year 1,500.00 -
Utilised during the year 769.78 -
As at March 31 930.22 200.00

Grant is received for preparation of Detailed Project Report for Phase-Il of Metro Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Co. Ltd and for

Surat Metro.

Note 15 : Other current / Non-current liabilities

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Current

Statutory liabilities 558.17 899.43

558.17 899.43

Total 558.17 899.43
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Note 16 : Other income
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Interest receipts 1,457.73 2,892.66
Misc. Income 231.53 39.03
Profit on sale of fixed assets (nhet) 1.46 4.38
Foreign exchange Gain (net) - 198.78
Sundry balances/provisions written back 9.45 -

Total 1,700.17 3,134.85

Note 17 : Employee benefits expense
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Salaries, wages, allowances and bonus 1,419.47 1,196.03
Contribution to employee benefit funds 144.88 126.30
Total 1,564.35 1,322.33

Note 18 : Finance costs
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Interest on Term loans 23.89 -
Interest on Tax 0.03 -
Interest on Subordinate Debt 213.68 114.33
Commitement Charges & Interest on PTA - 2.87
Other Interest Expense 5.43 -
Total 243.03 117.20

Note 19 : Depreciation and amortization expense
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Depreciation on Tangible assets (Refer Note 5) 314.38 335.82
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 1,463.61 961.76
Total 1,777.99 1,297.58

Note 20 : Other expenses
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Foreign exchange Loss (net) 1432.27 -
Administrative expense
Vehicle Hiring and Running Expense 207.11 182.63
Electricity Expenses 35.71 36.60
Rent 332.38 187.31
Rates & taxes 5.80 83.59
Insurance premium 3.26 3.71
Advertisement expense 89.66 187.82
Legal & professional fees 443.88 272.99
House Keeping and Other Expense 85.17 39.61
Project development and promotion Expense 6.31 122.73
Security Service Expense 269.08 230.69
Office Expenses 71.70 65.97
Computer & Peripheral Expenses 32.27 23.47
Internet & Telephone Exp. 27.91 25.11
Printing & Stationary 28.33 22.20
Operation & Management Staff Expense 256.15 -
Recruitment Expense 49.82 28.99
Local Conwvweyance & Transportation Exp. 4.46 2.13
Meeting Expenses 0.02 1.18
Miscellaneous Expense " 13.73 4.37
Software Maintenance & Support 45.33 A47.79
Stamp Duty on issue of Share 40.00 12.60
Other Misc. Project Expe 4.99 1.52
Tour & Trawvells Exp 50.29 47.89
Repairs & Maintenance expenses - others 14.24 8.32
Payment to auditors
For Statutory Audit 10.85 8.66
Total 3,560.72 1,647.88
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Note 21 : Exceptional items
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Provision for impairment of CWIP
(Refer note 29) 11,584.21 -

Total 11,584.21 -

Note 21: During the year 2014-15 two cases of frauds amounting Rs.115,84.21 Lakhs have been identified and FIRs were lodged
in police station, charge sheets have been filed and trial is in progress. Earlier the company had taken stand to wait up to final
verdict in the matter to make provision in the statement of accounts. In view of prolonged judicial process and trial is also taking
long time, the 14th Audit Committee meeting met on 16th July, 2018 and decided to make the provision for aforesaid amount in
statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2018 due to which the Capital Work in Progress of other than Phase-I
reduced to that extent.

The State Government has released an additional subordinate debt of Rs.46700 Lakhs to cover the expenditure of capital work in
progress of other than Phase-l (done by State PSU) therefore there is no impact on capital work in progress of 50:50 SPV for
Phase-l.

Note 22 : Income tax

The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are :
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current income tax 308.18 965.29

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (Refer Note B) - -

Earlier years' tax (0.35) (1.52)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 307.83 963.77

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate

A) Current tax (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Accounting Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations (10,140.19) 3,132.72
Tax @ 34.608% (March 31, 2018: 34.608%, March 31, 2017: 34.608%) - 1,084.17
Adjustment

In respect of current income tax of previous years (0.35) (1.52)
Income/Expense not considered for tax and Ind AS adjustments 499.75 (188.33)
Prior Period Errors - 69.45
Tax on Income at different rates (MAT) (191.57) -
At the effective income tax rate of (March 31, 2018 : N.A.), (March 31, 2017 :30.765%) 307.83 963.77

B) Deferred tax
In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 12) "Income Taxes" , the company has worked out the Deferred Tax
Liability and Assets as under.
However, considering the current project stage, expectation of commencement of the operations of the company and probability
of the future taxable profits, Deferred Tax Assest is recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liability as per Para 27 & 28 of
Ind AS 12.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(A) Deferred Tax Liability on Account Of:

Difference between Tax Base and Account Base of Capital Works in

Progress as per Income Tax Act, 1961 and The Companies Act, 2013. 672.28 -
672.28 -

(B) Deferred Tax Asset on Account Of:
Provisions for employee benefits 49.55 -
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit 1,804.46 -
Carried Forward Tax Losses 8.61 -
1,862.62 -
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Note 23 : Additional Information to the Financial Statements

(i) Contingent liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
e Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Contingent liabilities not provided for
Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts towards

Capital works 5,178.01 4,839.19
Land - -
Tax matters under appeal 984.95 925.05
(i) Capital commitment and other commitments (Rs. in Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of Contracts including foreign currency 664,908.81 510,549.57
contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for:
Less: Capital Advance 49,064.30 20,292.48
Net of Capital Advance 615,844.51 490,257.09

(iii) (a) The Company has incurred expenditure at Motera and Indroda area towards various support facilities for implementation
of Metro Project such as Depot, Casting Yard, Warehouse Complex and protection wall. The Ownership of the land of Indroda
area belongs to R & B Department, Government of Gujarat and 12.64 hectare of land at Motera area has been acquired by the
Company. The allotment of land at Indroda Area is pending with the respective authorities. The total amount of expenditure
incurred towards various support facilities at Motera is Rs.35903.62/- Lac and at Indroda is Rs.1330.36/- Lac. Which have been
disclosed as Capital Work in Progress under Note No. 5.A of the Financial Statement of the Company.

(iii) (b) Land admeasuring 17.62 hectares at Ahmedabad Apparel Park SEZ has been allotted by GIDC to MEGA for
construction of Depot. As of 31st March 2018, the detailed terms and conditions of transfer of this land from GIDC to MEGA is
yet to be decided by the Government of Gujarat. As the amount of liability is not ascertainable, the same is not provided for.

iv) Pending capitalization of the projects of the company and uncertainty about the commencement of business under income-
tax provisions, computation of deferred tax liability / assets cannot be ascertained for the purpose of accounts.

v) Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006:

No amount is due to the suppliers, who are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 as
at 31st March, 2018.

vi) Balances of the parties including old balances are subject to confirmation and necessary adjustments of old balances if any.
vii) Disclosure as per Accounting Standard 17 “ Segment Reporting”

Since the project is under implementation phase, there are no operating segments or geographical segment which is to be
disclosed under Ind AS 108
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Note 24 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

A. Foreign Exchange Derivatives (Rs. in Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Nature of instrument Currency
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Forward contracts
Sales UsD - -

Swap
Interest Swap usD -

Option contracts
Purchase USD - -
All derivative contracts stated above are for the purpose of hedging the underlying foreign currency exposure.

B. Exposure Not Hedged (Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Nature of exposure Currency
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Payable towards borrowings JPY 57527.39 14972.43
Receivable towards loans usD - -
Payable to creditors uUsbD 1,266.38 50.50
EURO 109.96 55.95
JPY 269.21 37.40
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Note 25 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans:

Amount of Rs.106.93 lakhs. (March 31, 2017: Rs. 95.70 lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 17 "Employee benefit expense”

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Contribution to PF & other funds 106.93 95.71
106.93 95.71

Defined benefit plans:
The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:
(a) Gratuity

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit as per scheme of the Company, for each completed year of senice. The same is payable on retirement or termination whichever is earlier. The benefit vests

only after five years of continuous senice.

March 31, 2018 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income

April 1, 2017 Senice cost Net interest expense Sub-total included in Benefit paid Return on plan  Actuarial changes  Actuarial changes  Experience Sub-total  Contributio March 31, 2018
statement of profit assets (excluding arising from arising from changes adjustments included in ns by
and loss (Note 30) amounts included changes in in financial OClI employer
in net interest demographic assumptions
expense) assumptions
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 66.39 33.12 4.83 37.95 - - - (4.19) (33.73) (37.92) - 66.42
Fair value of plan assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Benefit liability 66.39 33.12 4.83 37.95 - - - (4.19) (33.73) (37.92) - 66.42
Total benefit liability 66.39 33.12 4.83 37.95 - - - (4.19) (33.73) (37.92) - 66.42
March 31, 2017 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and loss Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
April 1, 2016 Senice cost Net interest expense Sub-total included in Benefit paid Return on plan  Actuarial changes ~ Actuarial changes  Experience Sub-total  Contributio March 31, 2017
statement of profit assets (excluding arising from arising from changes adjustments included in ns by
and loss (Note 30) amounts included changes in in financial OClI employer
in net interest demographic assumptions
expense) assumptions
Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation 40.83 27.39 3.21 30.59 - - - 4.39 (9.42) (5.03) - 66.39
Fair value of plan assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Benefit liability 40.83 27.39 3.21 30.59 - - - 4.39 (9.42) (5.03) - 66.39
Total benefit liability 40.83 27.39 3.21 30.59 - - - 4.39 (9.42) (5.03) - 66.39

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

. Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars

Discount rate 7.78% 7.2T%
Future salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Medical cost inflation - -

Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
N.A.

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
N.A.

Morality rate during employment
Morality rate after employment
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Gratuity
(increase) / decrease in defined benefit obligation (Impact)
Particulars St ] Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Gratuity

Discount rate 1% increase (7.17) (7.19)
1% decrease 8.61 8.57
Salary increase 1% increase 8.59 8.51
1% decrease (7.28) (7.26)
Attrition rate 1% increase (0.50) (1.24)
1% decrease 0.42 1.24

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

. Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars . ;
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Gratuity
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.63 0.94
Between 2 and 5 years 14.09 11.34
Beyond 5 years 27.12 28.44
Total expected payments 42.84 40.72
Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)
. Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars
Years Years
Gratuity 14.00 14.00

C. Other Long term employee benefit plans

Retirement benefits to eligible government employees on deputation will be paid by their respective principal organizations / departments from where they have been deputed,
hence provision to that extent has not been considered.
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Note 26 : Earning per share

Particulars

2017-18
In Rs.

2016-17
In Rs.

Earing per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares
For Basic EPS
For Diluted EPS

Nominal value of equity shares

Basic earning per share

Diluted earning per share

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS
Effect of dilution: Conwertible additional sub-ordinate debt
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution

(1,044,802,000.00)

1,851,210,000.00

1,695,319,589.00

1,695,319,589.00
10.00
(0.62)
(0.62)

1,695,319,589.00

1,695,319,589.00

216,895,039.70

1,551,210,000.00

1,407,818,219.00
1,719,818,219.00
10.00

0.15

0.13

1,407,818,219.00
312,000,000.00
1,719,818,219.00

Note 27 : Related party disclosure

a) Key Management Personnel
Name of the Related parties
Shri. | P Gautam

Shri Biren Parmar

Shri S.S.Rathi

Shri.S. S. Sabuwala

Relationship
Managing Director
Director-Finance
Director-P&P

Chief Financial Officer

Shri.Navin Varma
Shri. Hiteshkumar Bhamare

b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Company Secretary (Up to 30.11.2017)
Asst. Company Secretary (From 06.01.2018)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salary 112.93 101.10
Contribution to P.F 0.64 0.49
c) Commitment with related party
There are no commitment with the related party.
d) Compensation to Key Management Personnel (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Short-term employee benefits 112.93 101.10
Post employment benefits 0.64 0.49
Other long-term employment benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
e) Transactions with Government related entities (Rs. in Lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
GSFS
Funds deposited 199,197.39 162,538.31
Funds withdrawn 207,430.62 189,022.12
Interest Received 1,379.02 2,807.83
Short-term Loan Taken 7,500.00 -
Short-term Loan Repaid 7,500.00 -
Interest Paid 23.89 -
Account Receivable as at year end 16,411.12 25,232.55

Apart from the abowve transactions, the Company has also entered into other transactions in ordinary
course of business with Government related entities. These are transacted at arm's length prices based

on the agreed contractual terms.
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Note 28 : Lease Rent

Operating Lease

The Company has taken office premises under operating lease on leave and License noncancellable agreements. The Company
has given refundable interest free security deposits as per lease agreement. The future minimum lease payment in respect of

which is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Future Minimum lease payments obligation on non-cancellable operating leases:
Not later than one year 37.72 37.15
Later than one year and not later than five years 37.72 74.31
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 37.72 37.15

Note 29: Impairment of assets

On periodical basis and as and when required, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets. In the Financial Year
2017-18, the Company has reviewed the carrying amounts of its assets and found that there is no indication that those assets
hawve suffered any impairment loss except following loss incurred due to fraud identified:

Frauds identified during the Financial Year 2014-15
During the year 2014-15 two cases of frauds to the tune of Rs.11584.21 Lakhs were identified and reported against which FIRs
have been lodged by the company.

- One such incident pertains to quantitative difference observed by the management in connection with land development & earth
filling works at Motera Area. Estimated value of such difference as per the FIR lodged is Rs.11322 lakhs.

- It has been obsened by the management that 603 MT of TMT Steel is not traceable and \erifiable in the stock during the
detailed scrutiny of the quantity procured by the company. The total estimated cost of the non-traceable material as per the FIR
lodged is ¥.262.21 Lac. The investigating authorities have filed the charge sheets during financial year 2015-16 and criminal
proceedings hawve been initiated against the accused before the Hon’ble Sessions Court.

The aggregate estimated amount of the abowe incidents as per FIRs lodged is Rs.11584.21 lakhs. The same has been included
in the Capital Work-In-Progress of other than phase-l upto the Financial Year 2016-17, which has been provided for impairment
loss of asset and shown as exceptional item in the statement of Profit & Loss account for the Financial Year 2017-18.
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Note 30 : Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Financial assets

Loans 16411.12 25232.55 16411.12 25232.55
Other financial assets 808.85 749.62 808.85 749.62
Total 17219.97 25982.17 17219.97 25982.17

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 60093.25 16777.21 60093.25 16777.21
Trade payables 341.52 201.83 341.52 201.83
Other financial liabilities 31260.52 16355.06 31260.52 16355.06
Total 91695.29 33334.10 91695.29 33334.10

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade
payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabilities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for
debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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Note 31 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings and trade & other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include Investments, loans given, trade and other receivables
and cash & short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management regularly evaluates the risk profile of the
company and suggests measures for risk mitigation and management.

(a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to changes in market rates of interest. The Company does not have any long term
borrowings with floating interest rate.Thus the company does not have any interest rate risk at the present.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USD, Euro,GBP and JPY. The Company has foreign currency
denominated loans and has foreign currency trade and other payables etc. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. The amount for which
company is exposed to foreign currency risk is as disclosed in Note no. 24 of the financial statements.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s management in accordance with the Company’'s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties who meets the minimum threshold requirements under the counterparty risk
assessment process. The Company monitors the credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties. Based on its on-going assessment of
counterparty risk, the group adjusts its exposure to various counterparties. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
Balance sheet as of March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 & April 1, 2015 is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 30.

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors
its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

lessthan3 3 monthsto 1 lyearto5

Particulars On demand more than 5 years

months year years

Year ended March 31, 2018
borrowings* - - - - 87577.43
Trade payables - 341.52 - - -
Other financial liabilities - 31260.52 - - -

- 31602.04 - - 87577.43
Year ended March 31, 2017
borrowings* - - - - 87577.43
Trade payables - 201.83 - - -
Other financial liabilities - 16355.06 - - -

- 16556.89 - - 87577.43

* Includes contractual interest payment based on interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period over the tenor of the borrowings.

Note 32 : Capital management
The compnay aims to manage its capital effeciently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimse return to our share holders.

The Company is a 50:50 SPV of Government of India and Government of Gujarat and both Government's Equity contribution would be in the ratio of 1:1.No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.
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Note 33 : Prior Period Errors
The Company has accounted for prior period errors discovered during current period, retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts to which the same relates. Since certain periods
were prior to comparative period presented, the impact has been considered in opening balance sheet of comparative period presented.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial Statement Line Item affected n Sri 3_15‘ e 2,917 - o = at_ls( SR 2016. —
(Balance Sheet) Earlier Presented|Correction|Reclassification Restated Earlier Presented| Correction Reclassification Restated
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
Assets
Capital work-in-progress 124,761.33 | (1,280.05) - 123,481.28 72,013.67 (146.02) - 71,867.65
Non-Current Loans 13,263.79 - (13,263.79) - 495.82 - (495.82) -
Current Loans 28,915.00 - (3,682.45 25,232.55 56,494.44 - (5,377.40) 51,117.04
Other Current Financial Assets 1,246.25 - (599.33 646.92 - - - -
Other Non-Current Non-Financial Assets 14,597.19 (92.39) 17,562.31 32,067.11 18,202.15 (35.08) 5,873.22 24,040.29
Current tax assets 16.74 - (16.74) -
Liabilities
Other Current Financial Liabilities 17,545.72 (990.66) (200.00)| 16,355.06 - - - -
Deferred Government Grant 39,715.56 - 200.00 39,915.56 - - - -
Retained Earnings 4,186.39 381.77) - 3,804.62 1,816.76 (181.08) - 1,635.68
Prior Period Errors of earlier periods (181.08) - -
Excess booking of Other Income (397.32) - - (181.08)
Excess booking of Finance Cost 990.65 - -
Excess transferred to CWIP (794.01) - -
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Financial Statement Line Item affected n 2016"1?
(Statement of. Profit and Loss) Earlier Presented Correction Restated
Amount Amount Amount
Other Income 3,532.18 (397.32) 3,134.86
Finance Cost 1,107.85 (990.65)| 117.20
Expenses capitalised and transferred to
Incidental Expenses Pending Capitalisation (5,176.87) 794.01 (4,382.86)
Profit After Tax for the Period 2,369.63 (200.69) 2,168.94
(Amount in Rupees)
2016-17
Effect on Earning Per Share Earlier Presented Correction Restated
Amount Amount Amount
Earning per Equity Share (EPS) for Profit for
the Period
(Face Value of Rs. 10)
Basic (Rs.) 0.17 (0.02) 0.15
Diluted (Rs.) 0.14 (0.01) 0.13

Note: Apart of abowve, the figures of previous year have been regrouped /rearranged wherever considered necessary. The figures are rounded off to the nearest of Rupee.

Note 34 : Standard Issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘"MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the following new and
amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018:

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 21 The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers:
Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will
supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes effective.

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or senices to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or senices. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-
step approach to revenue recognition:

« Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

« Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

« Step 3: Determine the transaction price

« Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

« Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or senices underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity’s contracts with customers. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind
AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

« Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

Ind AS 21 —The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The
appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary
prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment
or receipt. Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements.

The Company is in process of evaluation of the possible impact of new Ind AS 115 and amended Ind AS 21. The Company does not expect the impact of
the adoption of the new standard to be material on its retained earnings and to its net income on an ongoing basis.

For, Manubhai & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Metro-Link Express for Gandhinagar and Ahmedabad (MEGA) Co. Ltd.
ICAI Firm Registration No.106041W/\W100136

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

G.R.Parmar Dr.l. P. Gautam S.S.Rathore

Partner Managing Director Director

M.No.121462 DIN:00260908 DIN:00128987
Sd/- sd/-
S. S. Sabuwala Hiteshkumar Bhamare
Chief Financial Officer Asst. Company Secretary

ACS 33182
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Date : 23-July-2018 Date : 23-July-2018
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